Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street

Regional Transit Authority Clevel:;nhi, Ohio 44113-1302
ne: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, May 20, 2025 in the Board Room of the
Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113, for consideration of the listed items and
such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon. This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA’s Board Page www.RideRTA.com/board on the meeting date for staff
and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’s website at (www.riderta.com/board ), on RTA’s
Facebook page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

9:00 A.M. Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee
¢ TRACTION Results Reporting — Presentation of 15t Quarter 2025 scorecards and

customer experience surveys.
¢ Quarterly Management Report — Review of 1t Quarter 2025 results

Board of Trustees Meeting
¢ Agenda attached

A= o
ndia L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT/al
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materials.







AGENDA
ORGANIZATIONAL, SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, May 20, 2025

Committee Members: Ms. Emily Garr Pacetti, Chair
Ms. Lauren R. Welch, Vice Chair
Mayor Marie Galilo
Ms. Deidre Y. McPherson
Mr. Jeffrey W. Sleasman

l. Roli Call
. Approval of Minutes — May 6, 2025

TRACTION Results Reporting — Presentation of 15t Quarter 2025
scorecards and customer experience surveys.

Quarterly Management Report — Review of 1%t Quarter 2025 results

M. Adjourn






Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee

May 6 , 2025

MEETING MINUTES

Committee Members: Ms. Welch (Vice Chair), Mayor Gallo, Ms. McPherson, Mr. Sleasman
Other Board Members: Ms. Elder, Mayor Koomar, Mr. Love, Rev. Lucas, Mayor Weiss

Not Present: Ms. Pacetti

Staff/Other: Shawn Becker, Melinda Dangelo, Nick Davidson, Mary Flannery, Bob

Fleig, Joel Freilich, Anthony Garofoli, Rajan Gautam, Sharon Jenkins,
Lawrence Jupina, Carl Kirkland, Jonathan Laule, Scott Lawson,
Jennifer Martin, Kathieen McGervey, Joshua Miranda, Charles
Morgan, Holly Mothes, Allen Polly, Jim Reed, Rosalind Robinson, Mike
Schipper, Kay Sutula, John Togher, Eric Vukmanic, Tally Wendy, E.
Jay Wilson, Carolyn Young

Public: None

Ms. Welch called the meeting to order at 9:00 am with a roll call. Four (4) committee members were
present, representing a quorum.

A motion by Mr. Love, seconded by Mayor Gallo to approve the minutes from March 18, 2025.

Ms. Welch called the first presentation RFP Procurement-a presentation of a competitive negotiated
procurement to provide the Authority with revenue processing and collection services for three years
with two one-year options. Presenters: Allen Polly, Director, Revenue Collection and Rosalind
Robinson, Contract Administrator Il.

Mr. Allen reviewed the presentation and proposed award related to Revenue Collection and
Processing Services. The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA) recommends
awarding a contract to Brink’s, Inc. for the secure pickup, processing, and deposit of cash revenues
collected from fareboxes, Ticket Vending Machines (TVMs), Customer Service Kiosks (CSKs), and
the Customer Service Center. These services include the use of armored vehicles with lifigates,
armed personnel, and secure transport to ensure same-day or next-day deposits. The scope also
involves internal revenue verification and auditing processes.

Brink’s, Inc. was the sole respondent to a Request for Proposals (RFP) issued on January 12, 2025.
Since 1995, GCRTA has outsourced revenue services to reduce operational costs, improve security,
and avoid capital expenditures associated with in-house processing. An internal evaluation panel
representing multiple departments reviewed the proposal using criteria such as responsiveness to
scope, experience, customer service, and cost. Brink’s was recommended based on its qualifications,
longstanding relationship with GCRTA, and experience serving regional clients including the Ohio
Turnpike and Cuyahoga County.

Staff recommended awarding a three-year base contract to Brink’s, Inc. in an amount not to exceed
$983,075, with two one-year options totaling $691,366, for a total contract amount not to exceed



Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee
May 6, 2025
Page 2 of 2

$1,683,441 over five years. No DBE goal was established due to the absence of subcontracting
opportunities.

It is recommended the Committee forward the contract award to the entire Board of Trustees for
approval.

It was moved by Ms. Welch, and seconded by Mr. Sleasman, and unanimously approved to advance
the item to the full Board for consideration.

Ms. Welch calling for the next RFP Procurement presentation — a competitive negotiated procurement
for authority-wide automatic pedestrian door maintenance and repairs for three years with two, one-
year options. Presenters are Jason Rosenlieb, Manager, Facilities and Scott Lawson, Contract
Administrator.

Mr. Rosenlieb and Mr. Lawson gave a presentation on the proposed award for preventive
maintenance and repair services for Automatic Pedestrian Doors (APDs) across the GCRTA system.
The goal of the project is to maintain ADA compliance, ensure safe and reliable door operation, and
improve accessibility for all passengers. Services include routine maintenance, emergency repairs,
part replacements, and system testing.

An RFP was issued on December 8, 2024, and accessed by 11 interested parties. One proposal was
received from Trinity Door Systems, Inc. The proposal was evaluated by an internal panel
representing multiple departments, using criteria that included technical competence, maintenance
and support, cost, and experience. Trinity was selected based on its qualifications, experience, and
previous successful work with GCRTA, including the Tower City Station Door Replacement project.
Trinity also serves a wide range of public and private sector clients and employs certified technicians
offering 24/7 emergency support.

The proposed contract will consolidate previous annual blanket orders and provide consistent service
for a three-year base period with two optional one-year extensions.

Staff recommends awarding the contract to Trinity Door Systems, Inc. in an amount not to exceed
$279,631.38 for the base term and $232,750.87 for the two option years, for a total not to exceed
$512,382.25—approximately 32.7% below the original project estimate. No DBE goal was set due to
limited subcontracting opportunities.

It is recommended the Committee forward the contract award to the entire Board of Trustees for
approval.

It was moved by Ms. Welch, and seconded by Mayor Gallo, and unanimously approved to advance
the item to the full Board for consideration

There being no further business to bring before this Committee, a motion to adjourn the meeting by
Ms. Welch, and seconded by Ms. McPherson. The meeting was adjourned at 9:14 am.

Rajan D. Gautam Avis R. Lyons
Secretary/Treasurer Interim Executive Assistant



GCRTA Customer and Community Survey Results — May 2025

I. Overall Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority Customer Experience

The 13" wave of Customer Experience Surveys occurred in March 2025. The agency Net Promoter Score* (NPS)
declined 15 points from Wave 12, back to a similar score as waves 10 and 11. This may indicate that Wave 12 was
an anomaly. Overall Satisfaction also declined, but maintains close proximity to 70%, as evidenced by the past five
waves. The chart presented below shows the five most recent waves of customer experience surveys with overall
results weighted by mode ridership {Fixed Route, BRT, Rail, and Paratransit).

Industy Comparison: Customer Impression

100%
80% e _74%
68%
" pI% 63% 64%
] | ! - —_—
60% | | k 489,
|
|
34 ! | !
40% 27 ]
3 | " II |
20% B ! | | 1 |
. . f |
| i B 8l | |
0% - i | I . |
Customer NPS Overall Customer On-time Performance Personal Safety/Security Vehicle Cleanliness
Satisfaction

Wave 9 ' Wave 10 w Wave 1l mWavel2 ® Wavel3 wm TransPro
(Mar 24) {(Jun 24) (Sep 24) (Dec 24) (Mar 25) Agency Average

On average, the RTA’s NPS now sits 7 points below other transit agencies. Similarly, Overall Satisfaction is now 8
points below other agencies. Customer perceptions of on-time performance, personal safety/security, and vehicle
cleanliness all decreased from Wave 12.

Il. Fixed Route, BRT, & Rail

Consistent with previous customer surveys, a methodology of a randomized intercept survey of approximately
every fourth boarding customer across the three modes (Fixed Route, BRT, and Rail) was conducted. A total of
1,322 surveys were completed, yielding a margin of error below 5% for each mode.

The NPS for Fixed Route Bus, BRT, and Rail are 27, 24, and 24, respectively. For Overall Satisfaction, the modes
scored 68%, 70%, and 65%, respectively.

The most important factors include personal safety and security (all modes), on-time performance (all modes),
cleanliness (Fixed Route, BRT, and Rail}, and drivers (Paratransit).

Customers are most satisfied with service operating on the days and times that are needed (Fixed Route, BRT,
Rail), conveniently located routes (BRT and Rail), understanding routes and navigating the system (Fixed Route,
BRT), travel time (Rail), and safely maintained and operated vehicles (Fixed Route).

Customers are least satisfied with vehicle cleanliness (Fixed Route, BRT, and Rail) and personal safety and security
waiting for the vehicles (Fixed Route, BRT, and Rail).



Ill. Paratransit

Paratransit surveys were completed by telephone and mail with a total of 403 surveys yielding a +4.9% margin of
error.

RTA’s Paratransit NPS increased by 1 point, from 65 in Wave 12 to 66 in this wave. It is now 6 points higher than
the TransPro agency average of 60.

The most important factors to paratransit customers are safety while riding the vehicle, safe driving by operators,
and on-time pick-up.

Customers are most satisfied with safety while boarding the vehicle, safety when riding the vehicle, and
paratransit operators driving safely. They are least satisfied with concerns and complaints being resolved in a
timely fashion and vehicle comfort.

IV. Community Value Survey

The 7" wave of Community Value Surveys occurred in April 2025. 20% of those surveyed currently ride RTA.
Despite that, 89% of the community believe that RTA brings value to the region and 68% find value in RTA
personally. The perception of personal value continues to increase wave-over-wave, even though the percentage
of riders has been lower over the past two waves.

The community ranked Employment Impact as the most important role that RTA plays in the region. This includes
access to employment, attracting and retaining more employment options, and attracting and retaining a qualified
workforce.

a=QO=m Percent who use the service ==Qms Percent who find value personally esOmsPercent who see value to the region
100%
20% (W
60%
40%
20%
0%

Wave 1 Wave 2 Wave 3 Wave 4 Wave 5 Wave 6 Wave 7
{Apr 22) {Oct 22) (Jun 23) {Sep 23) {Apr 24) (Oct 24) (Apr 25)

*Net Promoter Score

WBET PROMOTERS SCORE = % PROMOTERS -

~

ONMORY
@ ® | &
&

NEUTRALS  PROMOTERS



Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

FY25 Q1 Quarterly Performance Review Executive Summary

Q1 Organizational Scorecard

Customer Experience earned 36.8 of the possible 40 points (92%); Community Impact earned 15.9 of the possible 25
points (64%); Employee Investment earned 19.7 of the possible 20 points (99%); and Financial Health earned 7.9 of its
possible 15 points (53%). Customer Experience: All survey-based metrics came in under goal, but the performance-based
metric exceeded its goal (on-time performance-actual). Community Impact: 68% of the community believe RTA brings
value to them personally. Capital projects continue to be a focus. Employee Investment: Nearly all metrics reached or
exceeded the goal. Internal promotions, agencywide retention, and vacancy fill rates are all up. Financial Health: RTA
won $2.7M in competitive capital grants with another $66M awaiting a decision. The organization did not have to
transfer any funding from the Revenue Stabilization Fund.

Q1 Divisional Scorecards

Division Points Strength Area Growth Area
Operations 66.9 |[Safety - Preventable Collision Rate Operator Unscheduled Overtime
- - B -
Finance 64.0 manua'l Management — Community Competitive Grant Dollars Awarded
Perception
Engineering & Project _— . .
64.6 |Training Opportunities Annual Goal for Rail Car Replacement Fund
Management
Legal Affairs 97.2 |Reduce Operating Expenses Safety — Preventable Collision Rate Actual
) L Cultivate Internal Talent Pipeline — Non-
Human Resources 85.0 |Wellness incentive Participation .
Bargaining
Administration & - .
. i ion — Division Employees Satisfacti
External Affairs 95.5 |Community Perception - Brand ploy isfaction

2025 Organizational Scorecard Key Success Metrics
The key success metric(s) for 2025 is defined in each of the four success outcomes:

Success -
Success Definition Status
Outcome
Custc?mer 29 Net Promoter Score 27 Net Promoter Score
Experience
Co'r:]r::crllty 62% Community Perception of Personal Relevance 68% Community Perception of Personal Relevance

Employee | 95% Vacancy Fill Rate: Operators, Mechanics, Transit 92% Vacancy Fill Rate: Operators, Mechanics, Transit

Investment | Police Police
Fi i i - .
:_T:;:Lal $35M Competitive Capital Grants $2.72M Competitive Capital Grants

Tactics Review: 3 Most Important Things
The 3 most important things for 2025 are: (1) reduce operating expenses, (2) employee retention, and (3) customer
perception of safety and security.






VI.

VII.

VL.

Xl

XIl.

XI.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, May 20, 2025

9:00 am
. Call to order
. Roll Call
. Certification regarding notice of meeting

. Approval of Minutes
a. April 15, 2025 Board Meeting

Public comments (2 minutes) on Agenda and Non-Agenda items:

Please state your name and city of residence
a. Inperson
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff

Board Governance Committee report
¢  Mayor Paul Koomar, President

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
e  Chair: Mr. Jeffrey Sleasman

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
e  Chair: Ms. Emily Pacetti

. Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor David E. Weiss

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
e  Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

. Committee of the Whole
o Chair: Mayor Paul Koomar

Civilian Oversight Committee (COC)
¢ Board Liaison: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
e Board Liaison: Ms. Deidre McPherson






RTA Board of Trustees
May 20, 2025
Page 2

XIV. Ad Hoc Committee reports
a. Ad Hoc COC Selection Committee
e  Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch
b. Ad Hoc Compensation Committee
e  Chair: Mayor David Weiss
c. Ad Hoc Nominating
e  Chair; Mr. Stephen M. Love

XV. Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions - Ida Marshall,
Senior Manager of Talent Acquisition

XVI. Introduction of Resolutions:

A. 2025-53 - Authorizing Contract No. 2025-032 with Lake Erie Electric of
Ohio, Inc. for the Purchase of Fiber Optic Cable in an amount not to exceed
$224,625.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department Budget)

B. 2025-54 - Authorizing Contract No. 2025-53 With UKG Kronos Systems,
LLC to Provide Annual SaaS Subscription & Support Renewal in an
Amount Not to Exceed $156,369.46 (General Fund, Management
Information Services Department Budget)

C. 2025-55 - Authorizing Contract No. 2025-1 With Brink’s, Inc. To Provide
Revenue Collection and Processing Services (Armored Transportation
Services) In an Amount Not to Exceed $983,075.00 For the Base Three
Years and in Amounts Not to Exceed $345,860.00 And $354,506.00 For
Each of the Two Option Years, Respectively, For A Total Contract Amount
Not to Exceed $1,683,441.00 For the Five-Year Period (General Fund,
Revenue Department Budget)

D. 2025-56 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-197 with Trinity Door Systems,
Inc. to Provide Preventive Maintenance and Repairs of Automated
Pedestrian Doors in an Amount Not to Exceed $279,631.38 for a Period of
Three Years and in Amounts Not to Exceed $109,950.56 and $122,800.31
for Each Option Year, Respectively, for a Total Five-Year Contract Amount
Not to Exceed $512,382.25 (General Fund, Service Management
Department Budget)

E. 2025-57 - Authorizing Contract No. 2025-070 with MNJ Technologies
Direct, Inc. for the Purchase of Replacement Laptops, Desktops, and Thin
Client Units Through the Ohio Department of Administrative Services,
Cooperative Purchasing Program, in an Amount Not to Exceed
$252,105.00 (RTA Capital Fund, Information Technology Department
Budget)

F. 2025-58 - Authorizing an Increase to Contract No. 2024-195 with RailWorks
Track Services, Inc. for Project 66C — Brookpark Yard Tracks






RTA Board of Trustees
May 20, 2025

Page 3

Improvements in the Amount of $261,241.02 for a New Total Contract
Amount of $2,851,067.02, and Reinstating the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer's Change Order Signing Authority in its Entirety
(RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
Budget)

2025-59 - Authorizing Contract No. 2025-039 With Integrated Power
Services LLC for the Furnishing of Traction Motor Armature Rewind
Services, as Specified and as Required, for a Period of Two (2) Years in an
Amount Not to Exceed $222,768.00 (General Fund, Rail District
Department Budget)

2025-60 - Authorizing Contract No. 2025-072 with the Braun Corporation
for the Purchase and Delivery of Two (2) 2025 Chrysler Voyager LX
W/Braun WAV Conversion ADA Vans for a Total Amount Not to Exceed
$134,140.00 (RTA Capital Fund, Fleet Management Department Budget)

2025-61 - Authorizing Contract No. 2025-073 with American Bus &
Accessories, Inc. for the Purchase and Delivery of Two (2) Paratransit
Vehicles, as Specified, for a Total Contract Amount Not to Exceed
$300,416.00 (RTA Development Fund, Fleet Management Department
Budget)

2025-62 - Authorizing an Increase to Contract No. 2022-121 with Northeast
Ohio Trenching Services, Inc. for Project 12D(a)-Bungalow Foundations for
the Trunk Line Resignaling in the Amount of $124,540.43, for a New Total
Contract Amount of $471,540.43, and Reinstating the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer's Change Order Signing Authority in its Entirety
(RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
Budget)

2025-63 — Authorizing Contract No. 2025-75 with Computer Sciences
Corporation, a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of DXC Technology Company, to
Provide Assure Claims Software Licensing, Maintenance and support
services for a five-year period in a total amount not to exceed $343,984.00
(General Fund Management Information Services Department Budget)

2025-64 — Amending Budget Appropriations for the Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2025
Capital Improvement Fund to Provide for an Increase of $72,000,000

. 2025-65 — Appropriating the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s

Expenditures or Outlays for the Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2026 Capital
Improvement Budget

2025-66 — Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to
enter into a Temporary Right of Entry Agreement for the Construction of
Sewer Infrastructure on Authority Property (Kingsbury Run Consolidation
Sewer Project)






RTA Board of Trustees
May 20, 2025
Page 4

O. 2025-67 — Authorizing the Donation of Non-Revenue Vehicle Numbers
24601, 33401, 25401, 28408 and 28407 to the Cuyahoga Community
College General Automotive Program

Secretary-Treasurer’s Report — Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager, Finance
Secretary-Treasurer

a. General Fund Revenue — April 2025 compared to April 2024

b. General Fund Revenue — period ending April 2025 compared to budget

c. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2025, actual receipts
through April 30, 2025

d. Inventory of Treasury Investments as of April 30, 2025

e. Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of April 30, 2025

f.  Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through April 30,
2025

g. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of April 30, 2025

h. Composition of Investment Portfolio as of April 30, 2025

i. Banking and Financial Relationships as of April 30, 2025

XVIl. General Manager's Report — India Birdsong Terry, General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer

XVIII. President’s Report
XIX. Old Business
XX. New Business

XXI.  Executive Session - to enable the Board to conference with GCRTA attorneys for
information-gathering, fact-finding and to receive legal advice.

XXII. The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for June 17, 2025 in the Board Room
of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio
44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA’s Board page
(www.RideRTA.com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in person.

XXIll.  Adjournment






D

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
April 15, 2025

MEETING MINUTES

Board Members: Mayor Koomar (Chair), Ms. Welch (Vice Chair), Ms. Elder, Mayor Gallo,
Mr. Love, Rev. Lucas, Ms. McPherson, Ms. Pacetti, Mr. Sleasman,
Mayor Weiss

Staff/Other: Nick Biggar, India Birdsong Terry, Janet Burney, Floun'say Caver,

Melinda Dangelo, Nick Davidson, Shashelia Degraffinried, Maribeth
Feke, Michael Fesler, George Fields, Bob Fleig, Ida Ford-Marshall, Joel
Freilich, Anthony Garofoli, Rajan Gautam, Chief Deirdre Jones,
Lawrence Jupina, Carl Kirkland, Sheila Miller, Joshua Miranda, Charles
Morgan, Holly Mothes, Mike Schipper, Kay Sutula, John Togher, Natoya
Walker-Minor, Carolyn Young

Public: Rich Exuem, Loh

I. Call to Order
a. Mayor Koomar called the meeting to order at 9:32 am.

Il. Roll Call
a. There were ten (10) Board members present, representing a quorum.
Rev. Lucas was delighted to answer the roll and thanked everyone for their cards and
concerns while he was in the hospital. He is glad to be back

lil. Certification regarding Notice of Meeting
a. It was advised that the notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four
hours in advance of the meeting, that the usual notification had been given to the news
media and other interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised
Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding notice of meeting had been
complied with.

IV. Approval of Meeting Minutes

a. The minutes from March 18, 2025, Annual Meeting had been previously distributed
and reviewed, and the Board Chair asked whether there were any additions and/or
corrections. It was moved by Ms. Pacetti and seconded by Mr. Love and approved by
unanimous vote.

b. The minutes from March 18, 2025, Board Meeting had been previously distributed and
reviewed, and the Board Chair asked whether there were any additions and/or
corrections. It was moved by Ms. Welch and seconded by Mr. Sleasman and
approved by unanimous vote.

V. Public Comments — Agenda and Non-Agenda ltems
The public comment section has been consolidated to include agenda and non-agenda items.

Several members of the public addressed the Board regarding both agenda and non-agenda items.



RTA Board of Trustees
April 15, 2025
Page 2 of 6

1.

6.

In-person_— Cleveland, OH - One resident expressed ongoing concerns with Paratransit
services, citing frequent miscommunication regarding pickup locations, incorrect scheduling,
and poor customer service. She described repeated issues with being left behind, long wait
times due to scheduling errors, and rude treatment by dispatchers. She also shared a safety
concern involving a threat made toward her and her son on public transit, noting that RTA
police provided no follow-up. Additionally, she reported a past injury while using RTA services
and highlighted the need for more consistent, supportive treatment for riders with disabilities.

Kevin Hinkle — Cleveland, OH (in person) - a Cleveland resident and funeral director, raised
safety concerns regarding passengers blocking aisles and doorways on coaches. He
emphasized the importance of drivers enforcing existing safety policies to prevent injuries
when the bus stops abruptly.

Airric Stewart — Cleveland, OH (caller) - voiced frustration about his public comments being
abbreviated in meeting records. He also expressed dissatisfaction with being disconnected
after speaking via the phone line, which he previously used to listen to entire Board meetings.
He urged the Board to make this line consistently available for both Board and Community
Advisory Committee meetings, citing transparency and accessibility. Mr. Stewart further
requested that written comments submitted through the web form not be edited or shortened,
stating that full messages should be shared and addressed.

Airric_Stewart — Cleveland, OH (webform) - submitted a written message reiterating his
comments, which mirrored the verbal comments he had just made during the call-in segment.

Unknown — Cleveland, OH (webform) — asked for bus service to be extended across the
Carnegie Bridge to gain access to West 3™ from Ohio City.

Jimmy Carter — Cleveland, OH webform) — calendar is spelled wrong — need spellcheck

VI. Board Governance Committee Report

a. No committee report

VIl. Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee Report

a. No committee report

VIII.  Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee Report

a. No committee report

iIX. External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee Report

a. No committee report

X. Civilian Oversight Committee (COC) Report

a. Ms. Welch reported a meeting was held and new officers were voted: Mr. Jonathan
England, Chair and Mr. David Morris, Vice Chair.

XI. Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

a. No committee report

Xll. Ad Hoc Committee Reports

a. No committee reports.



RTA Board of Trustees
April 15, 2025
Page 3 of 6

Mayor Koomar stated the Compensation Commitiee would have a brief report following the relevant
resolution.

Xlll.  Introduction of New Employees/Promotions
a. Ms. Marshall, Senior Manager, Talent Acquisition announced the new employees and
promotions including new operators, administrative staff and engineering personnel.
The board welcomed and applauded these individuals for joining or advancing with
GCRTA.

Resolution No. 2025-46 - Expressing Congratulations to the employees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority who retired during the first quarter of 2025 the
adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Elder and approved by
unanimous vote.

Took time to acknowledge the Retirees that were present by have pictures taken with
India Birdsong Terry, CEO, Mayor Paul Koomar, Board President. Each honoree thanked

GCRTA for this honor....
XIV. Introduction of Resolutions

A. 2025-47 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-214 with Burgess & Niple, Inc. for Project 20.29
— Engineering services for special bridge inspections — 2025 in an amount not to exceed
$371,710.00 for a period of 24 months (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department Budget) the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McPherson,
seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

B. 2025-48 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-163 with Vail Network Co., DBA VN Services,
Inc. for Project 20.13 — On-Call Schedule and Cost Control — 2024 in an amount not to
exceed $200,000.00 for a period of twenty-four months (RTA Capital and/for RTA
Development Funds, Engineering & Project Development Department Budget) the
adoption of which was moved by Mr. Sleasman, seconded by Rev. Lucas and approved
by unanimous vote.

C. 2025-49 - Authorizing Contract No. 2025-007 with R.L. Hill/ Platform Contracting Joint
Venture for East 79" Street Green and Blue Line Station reconstruction in an amount not
to exceed $9,984,587.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department Budget) the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by
Ms. Elder and approved by unanimous vote.

D. 2025-50 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-217 with CPC Industries, Inc. for the furnishing
of all-purpose, heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser, as specified and as required, for a period
of two (2) years in an amount not to exceed $167,200.00 (General Fund, Fleet
Management Department Budget) the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pacetti,
seconded by Mr. Love and approved by unanimous vote.

E. 2025-51 - Granting Permanent and Temporary Easements for the Construction,
Operation and Maintenance of Sewer Infrastructure (Kingsbury Run Consolidation Sewer
Project) the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pacetti, seconded by Ms. Elder and
approved by unanimous vote.

F. 2025-52 — Authorizing a Salary Adjustment for India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority. the adoption



RTA Board of Trustees
April 15, 2025
Page 4 of 6

of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by
unanimous vote.

Secretary-Treasurer’'s Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer, addressed the
board, first providing clarification on a significant variance from the Q4 Quarterly Management Report.
He explained that reimbursed expenses were 163.9% over budget primarily due to the use of
preventive maintenance (PM) funds to close out several older grants, increasing the PM amount from
the budgeted $1 million to $7 million.

He then delivered his regular financial update, noting key economic indicators: the annual inflation
rate stood at 2.9%, and interest rates remained at 4.5% pending a Federal Reserve decision. Year-to-
date ridership through February 2025 was up 0.2% from 2024 but remained 24% below pre-COVID
2019 levels. Passenger fare revenue was 14.1% below February 2024 due to delayed UPASS
receipts and 15.2% under budget. Sales tax revenue, which reflects economic activity from three
months prior, was down 2% year-over-year for February, and year-to-date collections were 0.9%
lower than in 2024. He also noted recent changes by the Ohio Department of Taxation, which
consolidated tax categories.

Financial highlights included $22.3 million in outstanding debt as of December 31, an average
investment yield of 4.07% year-to-date, and total cash and investments of $361.1 million—$27.5
million of which is in the general fund, meeting the board's reserve policy. In response to Mayor
Weiss'’s question about investment income projections, Mr. Gautam confirmed the 2025 general fund
investment income was budgeted at $1 million and agreed to follow up with additional details.

General Manager, CEO Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO provided the final formal report of the annual
meeting, beginning with gratitude and setting the tone for a celebratory close, including two upcoming
appreciation videos. She first acknowledged the board transition, thanking outgoing Mayor Anthony
Biasiotta of Seven Hills for his service. She welcomed Mayor Marie Gallo of Parma Heights as the
newest board member.

Ms. Terry highlighted a significant recognition for the finance team: under the leadership of Deputy
General Manager of Finance, Mr. Rajan Gautam and Director of Accounting, Mr. John Togher, the
team was awarded the Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA) highest honor for
governmental accounting and financial reporting for fiscal year 2023. John humbly thanked his team,
and Ms. Terry playfully acknowledged his unofficial title as the “King of the St. Patrick’s Day Parade,”
a historically high ridership day for RTA. She praised the operations and Transit Police divisions for
their excellent service during the event, emphasizing the collective effort involved in ensuring a
successful and safe day for Clevelanders.

On March 1%, Ms. Terry participated in Case Western Reserve University’s “Protecting Your Crown”
conference, aimed at empowering Black women leaders. She moderated a panel featuring influential
voices discussing work-life balance, authenticity in leadership, and navigating professional spaces as
women of color. She described the experience as both powerful and uplifting.



RTA Board of Trustees
April 15, 2025
Page 5 of 6

Also spotlighted was Dr. Floun’say Caver’s testimony to the Ohio Senate Transportation Committee,
advocating for $80 million in general funds and $15 million for workforce development to support
transit across the state. Dr. Caver emphasized that “mobility is freedom” and “transportation is
economic development,” messages that resonated with bipartisan legislators. Ms. Terry praised Dr.
Caver’s preparation and delivery, reinforcing the agency’s flat management approach that empowers
multiple team members to serve as capable spokespeople.

On March 6™, Ms. Terry participated in iHeartMedia’'s “CEOs You Should Know” podcast, which
showcases leaders from diverse industries across the region. She shared insights on RTA’s
operations and leadership style. While the podcast hasn’t been released yet, it is expected to be
published in the coming weeks, and we will share this information once it becomes available.

The swearing-in ceremony for 14 new Transit Police Officers, joined by their families was held in the
boardroom on March 7. Chief Jones and Deputy Chief Mike Gettings administered the oaths. Ms.
Terry thanked board members Mayor Kumar and Lauren Welch for attending and commended the
emotional and proud moment for the new recruits. Chief Jones noted with pride that, unlike many
police departments facing shortages, RTA’s department is growing and nearing full staffing, with 50
additional candidates in the pipeline. Ms. Terry credited this to the recruitment and marketing teams
and praised the department's continued commitment to safety and diversity.

Additionally, Ms. Terry expressed appreciation to Teresa Burrage for her work behind the scenes in
organizing board meetings, wishing her well in her new role with the county.

The meeting concluded with a note about Transit Employee Appreciation Day, encouraging everyone
to thank RTA staff—from operators to administrators—for their dedication. Two videos were shown: a
teaser of the upcoming digital annual report and a heartfelt appreciation video. Special thanks were
extended to Natoya Walker-Minor and her marketing team, along with the board-approved contractor

who supported production of the report.

President's Report

Mayor Koomar reminded everyone that Mr. Gautam will continue to provide his financial overview,
which began during the board retreat, at a meeting scheduled for Tuesday, April 1% at 8:30 am. A
meeting invitation was recently sent out and members were encouraged to mark their calendars. The
President also mentioned an upcoming vacation and noted that the Board Governance Committee
would be convened soon to discuss ongoing collaboration with management in the coming year.

In new business, Mr. Gautam provided clarification in response to a question from Mayor Weiss
regarding interest rates used in budget planning. He explained that during the budgeting process in
August-September, rates were around 4.5%, but projections suggested a decline due to anticipated
FOMC actions. As a result, an average interest rate of 2.5%, based on the past three years, was used

for budgeting purposes.
Executive Session

Mayor Koomar indicated that an Executive Session is needed to consider the investigation of charges
or complaints against a public employee official, licensee, or regulated individual and To enable the

Board to conference with GCRTA attorneys for information gathering, fact-finding, and to receive legal
advice. Upon unanimous roll call vote, the Board went into Executive Session to discuss such matters

at 10:42 am.



RTA Board of Trustees
April 15, 2025
Page 6 of 6

Following Executive Session, the meeting reconvened in open session motioned by Mayor Koomar
and seconded by Ms. Pacetti by roll call vote by unanimous vote at 11:12 am.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, May 20, 2025 in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA’s Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date.
The public is welcome to attend in person.

There being no further business to bring before this Board, a motion to adjourn the meeting by Mayor
Koomar and seconded by Mr. Love was approved by unanimous vote. The meeting was adjourned at
11:12 am.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FIBER OPTIC CABLE 2025-53
Date:
VENDOR: LAKE ERIE ELECTRIC OF TOLEDO, INC. May 15, 2025
AMOUNT: $224.625.00 Initiator: Engineering
& Project
Development
Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract for Project 59B, Fiber Optic Cable Purchase.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The project is for the purchase, delivery, and testing of fiber
optic cable for the Light Rail Fiber Optic Project.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid was posted on the Authority’s
Procurement Department website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-five (25)
interested parties, including subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation. Three (3) bids were
received and opened on April 3, 2025. The two (2) responsive bids received are as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Lake Erie Electric of Toledo, Inc. $224,625.00
Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. $274,263.00

The bid from Lake Erie Electric of Toledo, Inc. has been determined by the Procurement
Department to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder.
A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. The bid price is approximately 2.62% below the
engineer’s estimate.

4.0 DBE BACKGROUND: A 5% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Lake Erie
Electric of Toledo, Inc. has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the
utilization of Peak Electric (African American male-owned) in the amount of $13,000.00 or 5%.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,

Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2024-011-337, in an amount not to exceed $224,625.00 ($179,700.00 in federal
funds which represents 80% of the total cost).







Staff Summary & Comments
Fiber Optic Cable Purchase
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid would impact the ability of the Authority
to have fiber optic cable available for project installation.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid from Lake Erie Electric of Toledo, Inc.
be accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

Aw@ Z

G/ eral Manager Chlef E"x€ ive Officer







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-53

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2025-032 WITH LAKE ERIE ELECTRIC OF
OHIO, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE IN AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $224,625.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING &
PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deems it
necessary to purchase fiber optic cable for the Light Rail Fiber Optic Project; and

WHEREAS, the bid from Lake Erie Electric of Toledo, Inc., located at 12763 Middleton
Pike, Bowling Green, Ohio 43402, was received on April 3, 2025 in an amount not to exceed
$224,625.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid from Lake Erie
Electric of Toledo, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid from Lake Erie Electric of Toledo, Inc. for the purchase of fiber
optic cable be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Lake Erie Electric of Toledo, Inc. for the fiber optic cable

purchase.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2024-011-337 in an amount not to exceed $224,625.00 ($179,700.00 in federal funds
which represents 80% of the total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, if any; the
bonding and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations
of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Lake Erie Electric of Toledo, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 5% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: UKG ANNUAL SaaS SUBSCRIPTION & SUPPORT 2025-54
RENEWAL Date: May 15, 2025

VENDOR: UKG KRONOS SYSTEMS, LLC

Initiator: Management

AMOUNT:  NOT TO EXCEED $156,369.46 FOR A ONE-YEAR Information Services
PERIOD Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

4.0

(“Authority") to provide SaaS subscription, equipment (time clocks) and support services for
Workforce Dimensions, the Authority’s timekeeping and attendance system for non-bargaining

employees for a period of one year.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has utilized UKG Kronos Systems, LLC, fka
Kronos, Incorporated (“UKG”) software technology applications since 1998. Annual
subscription fees and support are required to maintain the UKG applications and equipment
(time clocks). Additionally, UKG is a companion product for payroll processing. UKG
technology and applications are proprietary products originally designed by Kronos. The
support services will provide the Authority with timely, expert support to resolve any critical
issues.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive procedures
are not required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof, as supplied
by the original source or its successors or assigns. Kronos was the original provider of the
Authority’s timekeeping and attendance system and developed the applications on a
proprietary basis. Kronos and Ultimate Software merged in April of 2020. As a result, UKG is
now the only source for renewal of the subscription and support services.

The Authority received a renewal quote from UKG on February 14, 2025, offering to continue
the UKG Saa$S subscription, time clock rental, maintenance and support for the Authority’s
UKG timekeeping and attendance system for a one-year period in an amount not to exceed
$156,369.46. The Management Information Services and Procurement Departments reviewed
the offer for adherence to the technical requirements. The quote submitted by UKG is
approximately 1% below the independent cost estimate of $158,000.00, which was based on

historical pricing.

A cost analysis has been completed, and the Procurement Department has determined that the
price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

DBE BACKGROUND: A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of
certified DBE firms.






Staff Summary & Comments
UKG Annual SaaS Subscription & Support Renewal

Page 2

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $156,369.46 for a one-
year period.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority’s UKG
applications, software and equipment unlicensed and unsupported, which would jeopardize the
functionality of critical HR and payroll systems.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer from UKG be accepted and the
resolution adopted, authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

Q{é’% Manager,_-Chief Executive@?ﬁcer







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-54

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2025-53 WITH UKG KRONQOS SYSTEMS, LLC
TO PROVIDE ANNUAL SaaS SUBSCRIPTION & SUPPORT RENEWAL IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $156,369.46 (GENERAL FUND, MANAGEMENT
INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) currently
utilizes UKG Kronos Systems, LLC, fka Kronos, Incorporated (“UKG”), licensed proprietary
products for human resources management and payroll processing; and

WHEREAS, the UKG system is proprietary, and annual SaaS subscription, equipment
and support services are required to use and maintain the application; and

WHEREAS, the Saas subscription, equipment and support services are only available
from UKG, located at 900 Chelmsford Street, Lowell, MA 01851, the successor to the rights of
the original licensor of these products; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive procedures are not required
when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by
the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, UKG has offered to provide said SaaS subscription, equipment and support
services at a negotiated amount not to exceed $156,369.46 for a period of one year; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer from UKG to
provide SaaS subscription, equipment, and support services for a one-year period to be in the
best interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from UKG to provide SaaS subscription, equipment and
support services for the Authority’s UGK applications for a one-year period be and the same is

hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with UKG to provide SaaS subscription,
equipment and support services for the Authority’s UGK applications for a one-year period.

Section 3. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget, in a total contract amount not to exceed $156,369.46
for a one-year period.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, if any; bonding
and insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.






Resolution No. 2025-54
Page 2

Section 5. That the Authority’s Board of Trustees expects that UKG will attempt to
exceed the 0% DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: REVENUE COLLECTION AND PROCESSING SERVICES | 2025-55
(ARMORED TRANSPORTATION SERVICES) FOR A Date:
PERIOD OF THREE YEARS WITH TWO, ONE-YEAR May 15, 2025
OPTIONS :

Initiator:

VENDOR: BRINK’S, INC.
Revenue Department

AMOUNT: NTE $983,075.00 FOR THE BASE THREE YEARS, AND
IN AMOUNTS NTE $345,860.00 AND $354,506.00 FOR
EACH OF THE TWO OPTION YEARS, RESPECTIVELY,
FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NTE $1,683,441.00
FOR THE FIVE-YEAR PERIOD

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other

1.0 PURPOQOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract for revenue collection and processing services for a period
of three years with two, one-year options.

20 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Revenue Department is responsible for the coordination
and control of the contract for pick-up, delivery, processing, and depositing of revenues
collected at eight locations throughout the Authority. This is a recurring contract and is
necessary for the proper handling and audit tracking of this revenue.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposal was posted on the Authority’s
Procurement Department web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Four interested
parties downloaded the solicitation package. One proposal was received on February 28,
2025. After evaluation by a panel of Authority employees in accordance with established
Procurement Department policies and procedures, and after negotiations, the proposal from
Brink’s, Inc. (“Brink’s”) to provide revenue collection and processing services in an amount not
to exceed $983,075.00 for the base three years and in amounts not to exceed $345,860.00
and $354,506.00 for each of the two options years, respectively, was agreed upon.

A cost analysis was performed, and the Procurement Department determined the negotiated
total contract amount to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 DBE BACKGROUND: A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of
certified DBE firms.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Revenue
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $983,075.00 for the base three years,
and in amounts not to exceed $345,860.00 and $354,506.00 for each of the two option
years, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,683,441.00 for the five-year

period.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer._Rejection of this offer will leave the Authority without critical
revenue collection services causing delays in the daily collection of revenue.







Staff Summary & Comments
Revenue Collection Services
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
6, 2025 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer from Brink’s be accepted and the resolution adopted, authorizing
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

AT N
3 /fngt/f;_ W-——‘—

G al Manager, Chief Executive ( er







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-55

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2025-1 WITH BRINK’S, INC. TO PROVIDE
REVENUE COLLECTION AND PROCESSING SERVICES (ARMORED
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES) IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$983,075.00 FOR THE BASE THREE YEARS AND IN AMOUNTS NOT TO
EXCEED $345,860.00 AND $354,506.00 FOR EACH OF THE TWO OPTION
YEARS, RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $1,683,441.00 FOR THE FIVE-YEAR PERIOD (GENERAL FUND,
REVENUE DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) requires
revenue collection and processing services (armored transportation services); and

WHEREAS, the proposal from Brink’s, Inc. (“Brinks”), located at 1422 Superior Avenue,
Cleveland, Ohio 44114, to provide revenue collection and processing services for a period of
three years with two, one-year options, was received on February 28, 2025; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, Brink’s has offered to provide the services at negotiated
rates resulting in an amount not to exceed $983,075.00 for the base three years and in amounts
not to exceed $345,860.00 and $354,506.00 for each option year, respectively, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $1,683,441.00 for the five-year period; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer from Brink’s
to be in the best interest of the Authority, price and other factors considered, and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from Brink’s to provide revenue collection and processing
services (armored transportation services) for a period of three base years with two, one-year
options be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Brink’s to provide revenue collection and
processing services for a period of three years, with the authority to exercise the two, one-year

options.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the General Fund, Revenue
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $983,075.00 for the base three years, and in
amounts not to exceed $345,860.00 and $354,506.00 for each of the two option years,
respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,683,441.00 for the five-year period.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor with the specifications and
addenda, if any; bonding and insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to
contractual obligations of the Authority.






Resolution No. 2025-55
Page 2

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Brink’s will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this

procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: AUTOMATIC PEDESTRIAN DOORS PREVENTIVE 2025-56
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS Date:
May 1
VENDOR: TRINITY DOOR SYSTEMS, INC. ?y 2. 2025
Initiator:
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $279,631.38 FOR A PERIOD OF Service Management
THREE YEARS AND IN AMOUNTS NOT TO EXCEED Department

$109,950.56 AND $122,800.31 FOR EACH OPTION
YEAR, RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL FIVE YEAR
CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $512,382.25

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a negotiated agreement to provide regular preventive maintenance
and repairs, as needed, for Automatic Pedestrian Doors (“APD"), including parts and labor at
various Authority sites.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has an ongoing and recurring need for
maintenance and repair of 105 APD that provide accessibility to customers. The contract will
include preventive maintenance to allow for the repair or replacement of normal wear and tear
items under guarantees and warranties before such items fail.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposal ("RFP") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Eleven (11)
interested parties downloaded the solicitation package. One (1) proposal was received on
January 8, 2025. After an initial evaluation by a panel of Authority employees, the proposer
was selected to be interviewed.

A best and final offer was requested and reviewed by a panel of Authority employees in
accordance with established Procurement Department policies and procedures. After
negotiations, the proposal from Trinity Door Systems, Inc. to provide said services in an
amount not to exceed $279,631.38 for a period of three years and in amounts not to exceed
$109,950.56 and $122,800.31 for each option year, respectively, for a total five-year contract
amount not to exceed $512,382.25 was agreed upon. A cost analysis was performed, and the
Procurement Department determined that the negotiated total contract amount is fair and
reasonable to the Authority. The negotiated total contract amount is approximately 32% below
the independent cost estimate of $762,229.00 for the five-year period.

DBE BACKGROUND: A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of
certified DBE firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.







Staff Summary & Comments
Automatic Pedestrian Doors (APD) Maintenance and Repairs

Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund,
Service Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $279,631.38 for a
period of three years and in amounts not to exceed $109,950.56 and $122,800.31 for
each option year, respectively, for a total five-year contract amount not to exceed
$512,382.25.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would prevent or delay the Authority’s
ability to obtain preventive maintenance and repairs for the APD.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
6, 2025 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer from Trintiy Door Systems, Inc. be accepted and the resolution
adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

7

/ i -
?’eneral Manager, Chief Exe?{iyé Officer







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-56

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-197 WITH TRINITY DOOR SYSTEMS,
INC. TO PROVIDE PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS OF
AUTOMATED PEDESTRIAN DOORS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$279,631.38 FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS AND IN AMOUNTS NOT TO
EXCEED $109,950.56 AND $122,800.31 FOR EACH OPTION YEAR,
RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL FIVE-YEAR CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $512,382.25 (GENERAL FUND, SERVICE MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority") has a need
for preventive maintenance and repair services for 105 Automated Pedestrian Doors (“APD”);

and

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2025, the Authority received a proposal from Trinity Door
Systems, Inc. (“Trinity”), located at 13886 Woodworth Rd., New Springfield, OH 44443, to
provide preventive maintenance and repairs of APD; and

WHEREAS, Trinity offered to provide these services in an amount not to exceed
$279,631.38 for a period of three years and in amounts not to exceed $109,950.56 and
$122,800.31 for the two option years, respectively, for a total five-year contract amount not to
exceed $512,382.25; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer from Trinity
as negotiated, to provide preventive maintenance and repairs to be in the best interest of the
Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from Trinity, as negotiated, to provide preventive maintenance
and repairs for a period of three years with two additional one-year options for renewal be and
the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Trinity to provide preventive maintenance
and repair services for a period of three years with two additional one-year options for renewal
exercisable by the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer.

Section 3. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund, Service
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $279,631.38 for a period of three
years and in amounts not to exceed $109,950.56 and $122,800.31 for the two option years,
respectively, for a total five-year contract amount not to exceed $512,382.25.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor with the specifications and
addenda, if any; bonding and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to
contractual obligations of the Authority.






Resolution No. 2025-56
Page 2

Section 5. That the Authority’s Board of Trustees expects that Trinity will attempt to
exceed the 0% DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT COMPUTER 2025-57
DESKTOPS, LAPTOPS, AND THIN CLIENT UNITS Date:
May 15, 2025
VENDOR: MNJ TECHNOLOGIES DIRECT, INC. =
Initiator:
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $252,105.00 Information
Technology
Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

20

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

(“Authority”) to enter into an agreement to purchase approximately 95 laptops, 103 desktops,
and 100 thin client units through the Ohio Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative
Purchasing Program (“Cooperative Purchasing Program”).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Information Technology Department needs to purchase
approximately 95 laptops, 103 desktops, and 100 thin client units. This equipment will replace
older laptops, desktops and thin client units that have reached the end of their service life and
are not capable of running the Windows 11 Operating System and/or application software.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: In Chapter 410 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Code Book”), the Board of Trustees has
authorized the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to utilize the Cooperative Purchasing
Program. This resolution will authorize the purchase of approximately 95 laptops, 103
desktops, and 100 thin client units through the Cooperative Purchasing Program with MNJ
Technologies Direct, Inc., under Contract No. 534482, for a total amount not to exceed

$252,105.00.

The prices established under the Cooperative Purchasing Program are the result of a
competitive process. A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department
has determined that the pricing is fair and reasonable to the Authority. The total price is 13%
less than the budgeted amount for this procurement.

DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does not establish goals on
procurements included in the Cooperative Purchasing Program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the RTA Capital Fund,
Information Technology Department budget, 100% local funds in an amount not to

exceed $252,105.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this offer would prevent or delay the Authority’s
ability to provide hardware to replace older laptops and desktops that have reached the end of
their service life and are not capable of running the Windows 11 Operating System and/or
application software.







Staff Summary & Comments
2025 Computer Desktop, Laptop & Thin Client Replacement

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer from MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc. be
accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

to enter into a contract.

8.0

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

Ge’h?al Manager, Chief Executive Cﬁﬁ)eﬁ"
\.






RESOLUTION NO. 2025-57

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2025-70 WITH MNJ TECHNOLOGIES DIRECT,
INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT LAPTOPS, DESKTOPS, AND
THIN CLIENT UNITS THROUGH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM, IN
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $252,105.00 (RTA CAPITAL FUND,
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) has a need to
replace approximately 95 laptops, 103 desktops, and 100 thin client units that have exceeded
their useful life and are not capable of running Windows 11 Operating System and/or application
software; and

WHEREAS, this computer equipment is available through the Ohio Department of
Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program (“Cooperative Purchasing Program”);
and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees authorized utilization of the Cooperative Purchasing
Program in Resolution No. 2017-102, as set forth in Chapter 410 of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Code Book™); and

WHEREAS, through Contract No. 534482 with the Cooperative Purchasing Program,
MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc., located at 1025 Busch Parkway, Buffalo Grove, IL 60089, has
offered to provide approximately 95 laptops, 103 desktops, and 100 thin client units for a total
amount not to exceed $252,105.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer has determined it is in the
best interest of the Authority to purchase the required computer equipment from MNJ
Technologies Direct, Inc. utilizing the Cooperative Purchasing Program and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc., through the Cooperative
Purchasing Program, to provide approximately 95 laptops, 103 desktops, and 100 thin client
units be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc. to provide approximately
95 laptops, 103 desktops, and 100 thin client units.

Section 3. That said contract will be funded through the RTA Capital Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, 100% local funds in a total contract amount not to exceed
$252,105.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, if any; bonding
and insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.






Resolution No. 2025-57
Page 2

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE, DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: INCREASE TO CONTRACT NO. 2024-195 FOR PROJECT | 2025-58
66C BROOKPARK YARD TRACKS IMPROVEMENTS Date:
VENDOR:  RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES, INC. May 15, 2025
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $261,241.02 AND REINSTATEMENT iniiator
: 241. Engineeri ,
OF GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE Devaloomey rolect
OFFICER’'S CHANGE ORDER SIGNING AUTHORITY Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review, Comment Information Only Other
1.0 PURPOSE, SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

(“Authority”) to increase Contract No. 2024-195, Project 66C — Brookpark Yard Tracks
Improvements and reinstate the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order
signing authority.

DESCRIPTION, JUSTIFICATION: This change order is necessary for the purchase of 7,000
feet of 1000 MCM cable. This cable is necessary for installation of positive feeders to the
catenary, negative return cabling, and cabling track to track.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: On February 25, 2025, the Board of Trustees, by
Resolution No. 2025-027, authorized a contract with RailWorks Track Services, Inc.
(“RailWorks”) to perform construction services for improvements to the Brookpark Yard tracks
in the amount of $2,589,826.00. There have been no prior change orders to date.

The need to procure this cable will increase the cost of the contract by $261,241.02, which is
beyond the $250,000 General Manager, Chief Executive Officer change order signing

authority. Approval of the change order will result in a new contract amount of $2,851,067.02.
This action also seeks reinstatement of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change

order signing authority.
This change order was reviewed and recommended by the Change Order Committee.

BE BACKGROUND: DBE requirements have been met. A 17% DBE goal was established for
this procurement. RailWorks has committed to maintaining a 19% DBE goal utilizing its
existing DBE firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This change order shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2024-011-337, in an amount not to exceed $261,241.02 ($208,992.82 in federal
funds which represent 80% of the total cost), for a new contract total amount of $2,851,067.02.

ALTERNATIVES: The cable could be separately procured with a risk of increased cost and a
delay which would impact delivery and operation of the new railcars.

RECOMMENDATION: This change order was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
6, 2025 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that this
change order be accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer to modify the contract.







Staff Summary & Comments
Brookpark Yard Tracks Improvements
Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

Geﬁde?'(al Manager, Chief Exé&]@ Officer






RESOLUTION NO. 2025-58

AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE TO CONTRACT NO. 2024-195 WITH
RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES, INC. FOR PROJECT 66C — BROOKPARK
YARD TRACKS IMPROVEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $261,241.02 FOR A
NEW TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $2,851,067.02, AND REINSTATING THE
GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S CHANGE ORDER
SIGNING AUTHORITY IN ITS ENTIRETY (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND,
ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deemed it
necessary to procure construction services, as specified, under Project 66C — Brookpark Yard

Tracks Improvements; and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2025-027, the Board of Trustees authorized Contract No.
2024-195 in the amount of $2,589,826.00 with RailWorks Track Services, Inc. (“RailWorks”),
located at 2101 S Carpenter St., Chicago, lllinois 60608, for the furnishing of said construction

services; and

WHEREAS, the Authority now seeks to purchase 7,000 feet of 1000 MCM cable, which
is necessary for completion of the scope of services for Project 66C ~ Brookpark Yard Tracks

Improvements; and

WHEREAS, RailWorks has offered to provide 7,000 feet of 1000 MCM cable at a total
negotiated cost of $261,241.02, resulting in a new total contract amount of $2,851,067.02; and

WHEREAS, said contract increase will exceed the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer's $250,000 change order signing authority; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is seeking Board authority to
reinstate her change order signing authority in its entirety; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems acceptance of the
offer from RailWorks, as negotiated, to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends

acceptance thereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer from RailWorks to provide 7,000 feet of 1000 MCM
cable for Project 66C — Brookpark Yard Tracks Improvements be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to amend Contract No. 2024-195 with RailWorks Track Services, Inc.
to include the purchase of the cable.

Section 3. This change order shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grant OH-2024-011-337, in an amount not to exceed $261,241.02 ($208,992.82 in federal
funds which represents 80% of the total cost), for a new total contract amount of $2,851,067.02.






Resolution No. 2025-58
Page 2

Section 4. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order signing
authority is reinstated in its entirety.

Section 5. That all other terms and conditions of said contract shall remain unchanged.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form 100-
326
01-12-22

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION:

CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF TRACTION MOTOR ARMATURE
REWIND SERVICES, AS SPECIFIED AND AS
REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF TWO (2) YEARS

VENDOR: INTEGRATED POWER SERVICES LLC

AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $222,768.00

Resolution No.:
2025-59

Date:
May 15, 2025

Initiator: Rail District
Department

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval

Review/Comment

Information Only

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract for the furnishing of traction motor armature rewind

services, as specified and as required, for a period of two (2) years.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The armatures are the rotating portion of the light rail vehicle
traction motors. This rotation propels the car forward or backward. They cannot be purchased

new because the armature shaft is no longer produced by any manufacturer. Therefore, the
Authority must rely on rebuilding them, as needed. This contract for traction motor armature
rewind services is an essential part of maintaining the LRV propulsion system.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid was posted on the Authority’s
Procurement Department web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Twelve (12)

interested parties downloaded the solicitation. One (1) bid was received on April 16, 2025. The

bid from Integrated Power Services LLC was determined by the Procurement Department to
be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder.

Integrated Power Est.
Services Unit Cost | Qty. Extended cost
Year 1 Armature $7,200.00 8 $57,600.00
Commutator $4,500.00 8 $36,000.00
Armature Shaft $1,950.00 8 $15,600.00
Year 1 Total $109,200.00
Year 2 Armature $7,488.00 8 $59,904.00
Commutator $4,680.00 8 $37,440.00
Armature Shaft $2,028.00 8 $16,224.00
Year 2 Total $113,568.00
Total
Contract
Cost $222,768.00

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority

4.0 DBE BACKGROUND: A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of
certified DBE firms.







Staff Summary & Comments
Traction Motor Armatures Rewind

Page 2

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract will be funded through the General Fund, Rail District
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $222,768.00 for a period of two (2) years. The
total bid price is approximately 23% below the budget estimate.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid would impair the Authority’s ability to
maintain its light rail vehicles.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer from Integrated Power Services LLC
be accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive

Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requiremer])ts.

G'e7n%/ral Manager Chlef Executive Off&é’“






RESOLUTION NO. 2025-59

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2025-039 WITH INTEGRATED POWER
SERVICES LLC FOR THE FURNISHING OF TRACTION MOTOR ARMATURE
REWIND SERVICES, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF
TWO (2) YEARS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $222,768.00 (GENERAL
FUND, RAIL DISTRICT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) requires the
furnishing of traction motor armature rewind services for the Authority’s light rail vehicle
propulsion system; and

WHEREAS, the bid from Integrated Power Services LLC, located at 4677 Manufacturing
Road, Cleveland, Ohio 44135, for the furnishing of traction motor armature rewind services, as
specified and as required, for a period of two (2) years was received on April 16, 2025 at unit
prices resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed $222,768.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid from
Integrated Power Services LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid from Integrated Power Services LLC for the furnishing of traction
motor armature rewind services, as specified and as required, for a period of two (2) years be
and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Integrated Power Services LLC for the
furnishing of traction motor armature rewind services, as specified and as required, for a period
of two (2) years.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the General Fund, Rail District
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $222,768.00 for a period of two (2) years.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda,
thereto, if any; bonding and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to
contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025
President

Attest:

Secretary- Treasurer






Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PURCHASE OF TWO (2) 2025 CHRYSLER VOYAGER LX | 2025-60
W/BRAUN ADA WAV CONVERSION VANS Date:
VENDOR:  THE BRAUN CORPORATION May 19, 2020
: Initiator: Fleet
Management
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $134,140.00 Depagment
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

(“Authority”) to enter into a contract for the purchase and delivery of two (2) 2025 Chrysler
Voyager LX w/Braun ADA WAV Conversion Vans through the Ohio Department of
Transportation Cooperative Purchasing Program (“Cooperative Purchasing Program”).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority's Service Quality Department currently
operates four (4) ADA accessible zone vans. Two (2) have reached the end of their useful life
and need to be replaced. Service Quality supervisors operate these vans to oversee daily bus

operations.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: In Chapter 410 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Code Book”), the Board of Trustees has
authorized the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to utilize the Cooperative Purchasing
Program. R.C. 5513.01(B) provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the
opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the Cooperative Purchasing Program for the
purchase of equipment, materials, supplies, or other tangible assets.

This resolution will authorize the purchase of two (2) 2025 Chrysler Voyager LX w/Braun ADA
WAV Conversion Vans from The Braun Corporation through the Cooperative Purchasing
Program, Contract No. 253-24, at a unit price of $67,070.00, for a total contract amount not to
exceed $134,140.00. The prices established under the state program are the result of a
competitive process. A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department
has determined that the price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does not establish goals on
procurements included in the State Cooperative Purchasing Program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, at a unit price of $67,070.00, for a total contract amount not

to exceed $134,140.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would impair the ability of Service
Quality to provide reliable and timely services.







Staff Summary & Comments
Two (2) 2025 ADA Vans
Page 2

8.0

9.0

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer from The Braun Corporation be
accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive

Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

raI Manager Chlef Executlve (Eﬁcer







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-60

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2025-072 WITH THE BRAUN CORPORATION
FOR THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF TWO (2) 2025 CHRYSLER
VOYAGER LX W/BRAUN WAV CONVERSION VANS FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $134,140.00 (RTA CAPITAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) has identified
the need to purchase two (2) ADA vans to replace those that have reached or exceeded their

useful life; and

WHEREAS, such vehicles are available through the Ohio Department of Transportation
Cooperative Purchasing Program (“Cooperative Purchasing Program”); and

WHEREAS, R.C. 5513.01(B) provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the
opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the Cooperative Purchasing Program for the
purchase of equipment, materials, supplies, or other tangible assets; and

WHEREAS, Section 410.04 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority permits the Authority to use the Cooperative Purchasing

Program; and

WHEREAS, through Contract No. 248-24 with the Cooperative Purchasing Program,
The Braun Corporation, with an office located at 631 W. 11" Street, PO Box 310, Winamac, IN
46996, has offered to provide two (2) 2025 Chrysler Voyager LX w/Braun WAV Conversion
Vans at a unit price of $67,070.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed $134,140.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer has determined it is in the
best interest of the Authority to purchase the required ADA vans from The Braun Corporation
utilizing the Cooperative Purchasing Program and recommends acceptance thereof by the

Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from The Braun Corporation, through the Cooperative
Purchasing Program, to provide two (2) 2025 Chrysler Voyager LX w/Braun WAV Conversion
Vans be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to contract with The Braun Corporation for the purchase and delivery
of two (2) ADA vans.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget, at a unit price of $67,070.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed

$134,310.00.






Resolution No. 2025-60
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, thereto, if any;
bonding and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations

of the Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF 2025-61
TWO (2) AMERICAN BUS ENDERA PARATRANSIT Date:
VEHICLES May 15, 2025
] Initiator: Fleet
VENDOR: AMERICAN BUS & ACCESSORIES, INC. Management
Department

AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $300,416.00

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract for the manufacture and delivery of two (2) wheelchair
equipped American Bus Endera paratransit vehicles through the Ohio Department of
Transportation Cooperative Purchasing Program (“Cooperative Purchasing Program”).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: These two (2) paratransit vehicles will be used by the
Authority's Paratransit District and will replace vehicles that have exceeded their useful life in
age and/or mileage, according to the Authority’s vehicle replacement policy and guidelines.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: In Chapter 410 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Code Book”), the Board of Trustees has
authorized the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to utilize the Cooperative Purchasing
Program. R.C. 5513.01(B) provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the
opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the Cooperative Purchasing Program for the
purchase of equipment, materials, supplies, or other tangible assets.

This resolution will authorize the purchase and delivery of two (2) American Bus Endera
paratransit vehicles through the Cooperative Purchasing Program Contract No. 248-24 at a
unit price of $150,208.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed $300,416.00. The unit
prices established under the Cooperative Purchasing Program result from a competitive
process. A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has
determined that the price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does not establish goals on
procurements included in the Cooperative Purchasing Program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, including but not limited to FTA Capital Grant OH-2021-009,
at a unit price of $150,208.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed $300,416.00
($240,332.80 in federal funds, which represents 80% of the total cost).

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this bid would impair the Authority’s ability to
provide reliable and timely paratransit service.







Staff Summary & Comments
Paratransit Vehicles
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid from American Bus & Accessories,
Inc. be accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

i

eral Manager, Chief Execytf(e Officer







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-61

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2025-073 WITH AMERICAN BUS &
ACCESSORIES, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF TWO (2) PARATRANSIT
VEHICLES, AS SPECIFIED, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $300,416.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) has identified
the need to purchase paratransit vehicles to replace those that have reached and exceeded
their useful life; and

WHEREAS, paratransit vehicles are available through the Ohio Department of
Transportation Cooperative Purchasing Program (“Cooperative Purchasing Program”); and

WHEREAS, R.C. 5513.01(B) provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the
opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the Cooperative Purchasing Program for the
purchase of equipment, materials, supplies, or other tangible assets; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees authorized utilization of the Cooperative Purchasing
Program in Resolution No. 2017-102, as set forth in Chapter 410 of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 56513.01(B) provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the
opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the Cooperative Purchasing Program for the
purchase of equipment, materials, supplies, or other tangible assets; and

WHEREAS, through Contract No. 248-24 with the Cooperative Purchasing Program,
American Bus & Accessories, Inc., located at 123 City Centre Drive, Cincinnati, OH 45216, has
offered to manufacture and deliver two (2) paratransit vehicles, as specified, at a unit price of
$150,208.00, for a total amount not to exceed $300,416.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive has determined it is in the best
interest of the Authority to purchase the required paratransit vehicles from American Bus &
Accessories, Inc. utilizing the Cooperative Purchasing Program and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from American Bus & Accessories, Inc., through the
Cooperative Purchasing program, for the manufacture and delivery of two (2) paratransit
vehicles be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to contract with American Bus & Accessories, Inc for the purchase of
two (2) paratransit vehicles.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, including but not limited to FTA Capital Grant OH-2021-009,
at a unit price of $150,208.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed $300,416.00
($240,332.80 in federal funds, which represents 80% of the total cost).






Resolution No. 2025-61
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda thereto, if any;
bonding and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations

of the Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025
President

Attest:

Secretary- Treasurer






Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22

TITLE, DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: INCREASE TO CONTRACT NO. 2022-121 FOR PROJECT | 2025-62

VENDOR: NORTHEAST OHIO TRENCHING SERVICE, INC.

AMOUNT:  NOT TO EXCEED $124,540.43 AND REINSTATEMENT | pebeionment

12D(a) -- BUNGALOW FOUNDATIONS FOR THE TRUNK "o
LINE RESIGNALING May 15, 2025

Initiator:
Engineering & Project

OF GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE Department
OFFICER’'S CHANGE ORDER SIGNING AUTHORITY

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review, Comment Information Only Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to increase Contract No. 2022-121, Project 12D(a) ~ Bungalow Foundations for
the Trunk Line Resignaling and to reinstate the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer’s

change order signing authority.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This change order is necessary due to design changes and a
two year delay in a separate but related project, the Trunk Line Signal System Project.
Completing the bungalow foundation work during the 2025 summer shutdown will help
advance the project schedule and avoid conflicts with the Trunk Line Signal System Project
during the 2026 summer shutdown.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: On January 31, 2023, the Board of Trustees, by Resolution
No. 2023-003, authorized a contract with Northeast Ohio Trenching Service, Inc. (“NEOTS”) to
perform construction services on the bungalow foundations along the Trunk Line in the amount
of $347,000.00. There have been no prior cost-associated change orders to date.

This change order will increase the cost of the contract by $124,540.43, which is beyond the
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer’s $100,000.00 change order signing authority.
Approval of the change order will result in a new contract amount of $471,540.43. This action
also seeks reinstatement of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's $100,000.00
change order signing authority.

This change order was reviewed and recommended by the Change Order Committee.

DBE BACKGROUND: A 23% DBE goal was established for this procurement. NEOTS has
agreed to maintain the established DBE participation goal as contracted by its existing DBE

firms.
POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This change order shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-337 and Capital Grant OH-2018-002 in an amount not to exceed
$124,540.43 ($99,632.34 in federal funds, which represent 80% of the total cost), for a new
total contract amount of $471,540.43.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority without the
timely installation of the bungalow housing foundations for the new signal system along the

trunk line.






Staff Summary & Comments
Bungalow Foundations for the Trunk Line Resignaling

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This change order was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
6, 2025 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that this
change order be accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer to modify the contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: Change Order Log

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

27
rd

Geneﬂ%anager, Chief Executive Of}iﬁ?

N\







APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS BUNGALOW FOUNDATIONS FOR THE
TRUNK LINE RESIGNALING

PROJECT NO. 12D(a)

Contract# 2022-121 Contractor: Northeast Ohio Trenching Service, Inc.
Original Contract Amount:_$347,000.00 Total G.M. C.0. Authority Remaining: $100,000.00
Total Change Order Amount to Date: $0.00 % Change to Date: 0.0%

C/O NO.| Change Order Description | Approval Date Chzxgilﬁ:der Newv(;?ur:ract
1 No Cost Time Extension 1/5/2024 $0.00 $347,000.00
2 No Cost Time Extension 4/17/2024 $0.00 $347,000.00
3 No Cost Time Extension 4/25/2024 $0.00 $347,000.00
4 No Cost Time Extension 7/24/2024 $0.00 $347,000.00
5 No Cost Time Extension 9/26/2024 $0.00 $347,000.00
6 No Cost Time Extension 12/6/2024 $0.00 $347,000.00
7 No Cost Time Extension 1/23/2025 $0.00 $347,000.00
8 No Cost Time Extension 3/20/2025 $0.00 $347,000.00







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-62

AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE TO CONTRACT NO. 2022-121 WITH
NORTHEAST OHIO TRENCHING SERVICES, INC. FOR PROJECT 12D(a) —
BUNGALOW FOUNDATIONS FOR THE TRUNK LINE RESIGNALING IN THE
AMOUNT OF $124,540.43, FOR A NEW TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT OF
$471,540.43, AND REINSTATING THE GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S CHANGE ORDER SIGNING AUTHORITY IN ITS
ENTIRETY (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deemed it
necessary to procure construction services under Project 12D(a) — Bungalow Foundations for
the Trunk Line Resignaling; and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2023-003, the Board of Trustees authorized Contract No.
2022-121 in the amount of $347,000.00 with Northeast Ohio Trenching Service, Inc. (“NEOTS”),
located at 17900 Miles Road, Warrensville Heights, Ohio 44128, for the furnishing of said
construction services; and

WHEREAS, the Authority now requires additional construction services to complete the
construction and also needs to extend the contract by two years due to delays on a separate but
related project; and

WHEREAS, NEOTS and the Authority have negotiated a change order in the amount of
$124,540.00 for the additional services and delay costs, resulting in a new total contract amount
of $471,540.43; and

WHEREAS, said contract increase will exceed the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer's $100,000.00 change order signing authority; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is seeking Board authority to
reinstate her change order signing authority in its entirety; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems acceptance of the
offer from NEOTS, as negotiated, to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends
acceptance thereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer from NEOTS to provide additional construction
services and a contract time extension for Project 12D(a) — Bungalow Foundations for the Trunk
Line Resignaling be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to amend Contract No. 2022-122 with NEOTS to include these
additional costs.






Resolution No. 2025-62
Page 2

Section 3. This change order shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-337 and Capital Grant OH-2018-002 in an amount not to exceed
$124,540.43 ($99,632.34 in federal funds, which represent 80% of the total cost), for a new total
contract amount of $471,540.43.

Section 4. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer’s change order signing
authority is reinstated in its entirety.

Section 5. That all other terms and conditions of said contract shall remain unchanged.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






326

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

01-12-22

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: ASSURE CLAIMS SOFTWARE AND SUPPORT 2025-63

VENDOR: COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION, A WHOLLY

Date: May 15, 2025

OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF DXC TECHNOLOGY —
COMPANY Initiator: Management

Information Services

AMOUNT:  NOT TO EXCEED $343,984.00 FOR A FIVE-YEAR Department Budget
PERIOD
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

(“Authority") to enter into a contract with Computer Sciences Corporation (*CSC”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of DXC Technology Company, to provide continuing software, licensing and
support for the Authority’s risk management software system for a period of five years.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: In 1999, the Authority purchased an integrated risk
management software system to assist the workers’ compensation and liability claims
employees in their duties. The Authority originally implemented Riskmaster (RM World v
3.4.26) in 2000. The Authority used the Risk Management Information System (*RMIS”) as its
single central database for workers’ compensation and third-party liability claims information.
In 2022, under Resolution No. 2021-105 the Authority migrated Riskmaster on-premises to
Assure Claims SaaS Hosting Solution (“Assure Claims”). That upgrade allowed the Authority’s
RMIS to remain in a state of good repair. A software add-on provided electronic reporting of all
accidents, incidents, claims, workplace injuries and other related events. This addition
improved the data entry process and allowed the Authority to focus on a technology-based
process instead of a paper-based process. The Authority has an ongoing and recurring need
for continued use and support of its Assure Claims software.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive procedures
are not required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof, as supplied
by the original source or its successors or assigns. CSC is the original provider of the
Authority’s Assure Claims software and developed the software on a proprietary basis, thereby
making CSC the only source for modifications, development and maintenance services for the

software.

The Authority has an ongoing need for licensing, maintenance and support for its Assure
Claims software. The Procurement Department received a proposal from CSC on April 29,
2025 to provide risk management software, maintenance and support services for the
Authority’s Assure Claims software for a five-year period in amounts not to exceed $63,508.00
for year one, $66,049.00 year two, $68,691.00 for year three, $71,439.00 for year four, and
$74,297.00 for year five, for a total contract amount not to exceed $343,984.00. The
Management Information Services Department, Risk Management Department, and
Procurement Department reviewed the proposal for adherence to the technical requirements.
The proposal submitted by CSC is approximately 21% below the independent cost estimate of
$416,626.44, which was based on historical pricing with an annual 5% increase.

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that the
negotiated price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.






Staff Summary & Comments
Assure Claims Software Licensing, Maintenance & Support

Page 2

4.0 DBE BACKGROUND: A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement due
to the lack of certified DBE firms.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $343,984.00 for a five-
year period.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority without the
use of the Assure Claims software application which will impact the Authority’s ability to
manage and process claims.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer from CSC be accepted and the
resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

G(?ﬁeral Manager, Chief Exe‘éﬁqﬁoﬁcer







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-63

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2025-75 WITH COMPUTER SCIENCES
CORPORATION, A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF DXC TECHNOLOGY
COMPANY, TO PROVIDE ASSURE CLAIMS SOFTWARE LICENSING,
MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES FOR A FIVE-YEAR PERIOD IN A
TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $343,984.00 (GENERAL FUND,
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) currently
utilizes the Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”) licensed proprietary product Assure Claims
for the Authority’s risk management applications; and

WHEREAS, the Assure Claims software is proprietary to CSC, the original provider and
installer of this software; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has a recurring requirement to procure licensing, maintenance
and support for its Assure Claims software system; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive procedures are not required
when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by
the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, the Authority received an offer on April 29, 2025 from CSC, located at
20408 Bashan Drive, Suite 231, Ashburn, VA 20147, to provide Assure Claims software
licenses, maintenance and support services for a five-year period in amounts not to exceed
$63,508.00 for year one, $66,049.00 for year two, $68,691.00 for year three, $71,439.00 for
year four, and $74,297.00 for year five, for a total contract amount not to exceed $343,984.00;

and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer from CSC to
provide licensing, maintenance and support services for the Authority’s Assure Claims software
application for a five-year period to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from CSC to provide licensing, maintenance and support
services for the Authority’s Assure Claims software application for a five-year period be and the
same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with CSC to provide licensing, maintenance
and support services for the Authority’s Assure Claims software application for a five-year
period.

Section 3. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget, in a total contract amount not to exceed $343,984.00

for a five-year period.






Resolution No. 2025-63
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda,
if any; bonding and insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual
obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Authority’s Board of Trustees expects that CSC will attempt to
exceed the 0% DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2025-64
AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2024-041 FOR AN INCREASE IN THE | Date-
FISCAL YEAR 2025 APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CAPITAL May 15, 2025
IMPROVEMENT BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $72,000,000 FOR THE — =
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY Initiator: Office of

Management &
Budget

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an amendment to increase the appropriation in
the Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2025 Capital Improvement Budget.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The proposed amendment to the FY 2025 Capital
Improvement Budget will authorize an increase in the appropriation by $72,000,000 to
establish the proper budget authority to cover the estimated cost of up to twelve (12) additional

rail cars.
PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The Capital Improvement Budget provides for the upkeep of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s (“GCRTA”) existing infrastructure, facilities, equipment,
vehicle replacement programs and provides for the implementation of projects included in the
Long-Range Plan. This increased appropriation of $72,000,000 in the FY 2025 Capital
Improvement Budget will establish sufficient budget authority to cover up to twelve (12)
additional rail cars in the FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The current FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget, as established in
Resolution No. 2024-041, provides the budget authority for expenditures or outlays of
$181,740,767. The amended appropriation will provide for the spending of $253,740,767,
which is an increase of $72,000,000.

ALTERNATIVES: Not approve the proposed increase in the FY 2025 Capital Improvement
Budget. This would leave insufficient budget authority in the Capital Improvement Budget to
cover the additional budget authority for the Railcar Replacement Program.

RECOMMENDATION: The proposed amendment to the FY 2025 Capital Improvement
Budget was reviewed by the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee of the Board of
Trustees (“Board”) on May 6, 2025. It is recommended that the Board approve amending the
FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget, as proposed.

ATTACHMENTS:
A. 2025 - 2029 Amended Combined Capital Improvement Budget







Staff Summary & Comments
CIP Budget Amendment
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

ey

Ge-n‘e/?a( Manager, Chief Executive Officér






000'000°2.2$ 192'0v.'€S2$ 192'0v2'181$ SIV1iOL
0$ 000°00€$ 000°00¢$ slajuap Jisued
0$ 000°059°Lt$ 000°059°Lt$ sjoafoud |ley
000°000°2L$ 000°Z69°cLLS 000'Z69°L17$ wesboud Jep ey
03 SL0'0VL°L$ SL0'00L°L$ "quiay “1adQ/JuleN dANUBARId
03 SIS Vrh'veS SLS'LPP'VES s1e9foid J9ul0
0$ 000°629°VL$ 000°529°v1$ sjuawanoidwy sailj1oey
0$ 0Z9'v80°CL$ 029'v80°CL$ S9[21UaA g Juawdinbz
0$ Lev'L0Z'62% L6V'202°'62$ sasng
0$ 0% 0% sabelen) sng
aduelIeA umuwmamh“wmow yebpng A"093LVD 103royd
JuadIng gzoe

ALROHLNY 139dN9g d3NIGN0D

1390anNg LNIJINIAOUdINI TVLIdVO AIANINY S20¢

V juswyoeny







RESOLUTION NO. 2025-64

AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2024-041 TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE IN
THE 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF
$72,000,000 FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT

AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, there are both legal and managerial requirements to establish the revenues
to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other types of
revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the capital improvement
program of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘GCRTA”) to be paid from said
revenue during each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a Capital Improvement Budget for the
GCRTA for the Fiscal Year (“FY”) beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025
(“FY 2025°) was adopted by the Board of Trustees on May 21, 2024 through Resolution No.

2024-041; and

WHEREAS, this amendment will allow an additional twelve (12) railcars to be added to
the 2025 Capital Improvement Budget; and

WHEREAS, the increase of appropriation for the FY 2025 Capital Improvement Budget
by $72,000,000 will establish a sufficient balance to cover the purchase of up to 12 railcars.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriation budget set forth in Resolution No. 2024-041, adopted May 21,
2024, be and is hereby amended as follows:

Current 2025 Appropriation Amended 2025 Appropriation
$181,740,767 $253,740,767

Section 2. That Resolution No. 2024-041 shall remain unchanged in all other respects.

Section 3. That the Capital Improvement Budget may be amended from time to time in
order to appropriate additional capital grant funds that may be received in FY 2025

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






326

07-03-97

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2025-65

APPROPRIATING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT Date:
AUTHORITY’S EXPENDITURES OR OUTLAYS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR | May 15, 2025

(“FY”) 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET Initiator:
Office of Management

& Budget

Approval ] Review/Comment 7] Information Only 7 Other

ACTION REQUEST:

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize appropriations for Fiscal Year 2026 (‘FY
2026") for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s (“Authority”) Capital
Improvement Budget covering locally funded and grant-funded projects.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: FY 2026 begins January 1, 2026 and ends December 31,
2026. There is a six-month process to incorporate new or revised grant funded capital
projects into the Northeast Ohio Area-wide Coordinating Agency’s (“NOACA”)
Transportation Improvement Plan (“TIP”) and Ohio’s State Transportation Improvement
Plan (“STIP”) prior to their inclusion in any current and future federal and non-federal grant
programs. In order to advance the availability of capital grant funds for the upcoming fiscal
year, the development of the FY 2026 Capital Improvement Budget began in September
2024 and involved extensive staff analysis and preparation as well as one meeting of the
Board’s Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee on May 6, 2025. One public
hearing was held on May 6, 2025 to discuss the proposed FY 2026 Capital Improvement
Budget. The Capital Improvement Budget proposed for adoption herein represents the
Authority’s spending plans for capital improvements throughout the transit system in FY
2026.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2026 Capital Improvement Budget provides for the upkeep of the
Authority’s existing infrastructure, facilities, equipment, vehicle replacement programs and
also provides for the implementation of projects included in the Long-Range Plan.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The proposed FY 2026 Capital Improvement Budget provides the
budget authority for the spending of $167,801,657 for capital improvement projects, of which
$163,251,157 is for the RTA Development Fund and $4,550,500 is for the RTA Capital

Fund.

ALTERNATIVES: Modify the proposed FY 2026 Capital Improvement Budget by adding or
subtracting expenditures or revenues for specific capital projects, or delay adoption of the
proposed Capital Improvement Budget, which would delay the availability of grant funds in
the upcoming fiscal year.

RECOMMENDATION: The proposed FY 2026 Capital Improvement Budget was reviewed
May 6, 2025 by the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee and is recommended
for adoption by the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the Board approve the
proposed FY 2026 Capital Improvement Budget as proposed herein.






Staff Summary & Comments
FY 2026 Capital Improvement Plan Budget

Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENTS:

TmMoO >

2026 — 2030 Combined Capital Improvement Plan

2026 — 2030 RTA Development Fund Capital Improvement Plan
2026 — 2030 RTA Capital Fund Capital Improvement Plan
Capital Improvement Fund Balance Analysis

RTA Development Fund Balance Analysis

RTA Routine Capital Fund Balance Analysis

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement

requirements.

A7
/ /

{ General Manager, Chlekf:g}écutlve Officer






NV1d LNJWIAOUdINI TVLIdVD 0£0Z - 9202

V JuswiyoeRy

122'sz8'209¢ ©61'SPL'6.$ €61L'G88°G6$ E£VE'626'80LS LY8 SOV 0S b$ 269°108°291$ SIviOolL
000°628°L$ 000°6.£$ 000°2€$ 000°2€$ 000'52¢$ 000'52€$ Si9jua) Jsued)
£98°691°G01$ 000°620°cL$ 000°69¢€°L1$ 198'960°61$ 000'525'¢y$ 000°00L'81$ sjosfoid |rey|
SLS‘6LZ°0ELS 19820¢'9$ 198'206'2Z$ 000°058°0€$ 000°001°62$ 18L°€90°L¥$ weibold Jeg |rey
£ZL'poe LeS 000°v¥1L'9L$ 000°000°2% 000'000°2% evezee'vs ¥28°2£8°2$ "quiay "1adO/julely sAnusAald
$0£°990°vv$ 9.5°161'c$ 9.5°161'c$ 9/5'L6L°c$ 9.5°169'GL$ 000°008°'81$ s3o9fo.d Jayi0|
|ooo‘o0l 98¢ 000‘0L0'6$ 000‘05€‘61$ 000°'586°2$ 000's26°CL$ 000°0£8'9e$ sjuswanoldw) sagijioey
059v29'65$ 000‘0z¢’s$ 000°02€'s$ 0sL'pse'9Ls 000°06Z'9L$ 00s‘0pE'9L$ sajayap g uswdinb3
89.'70L'SZ1$ 05.°9Z8'cZ$ 05.°'928°¢T$ 05.'928°¢Z$ 9l0'seZ'ves 205°686°62$ sasnhg
000°S9.°C1$ 000°0S5°Z$ 000°055°Z$ 000°0s2$ 000°0S6°t$ 000°691‘c$ sabeses sng
0€02-920¢ {1174 6202 8202 220¢ 920¢
VLOL A¥09O31VYD 103roud
1394an4g A3INIGNOD







125'052'085$

£61'592°92$ ¢€61°S0V'L6S €61'SIE'VOLS L¥8'C96°SYLS LSL'IGZT'CILS SIv10l
|ooo‘sz8‘L$ 000's2€$ 000°6.¢€$ 000's.¢$ 000°s.¢$ 000's2€$ Siajua jisued ]
£98°591'501$ 000°'szo’cL$ 000°69¢°L1$ 198'960°61$ 000°G.S‘ev$ 000°001 LS sjoafoud ey
ClEA R AR 298°20¢€'9$ 198'206°2T$ 000°‘058‘0¢c$ 000°001'62$ 182690 L¥$ weiboid seJ ey
lezi'voe Les 000°v¥L'9L$ 000°000°2$ 000°000°2$ evezee'vs v18°2€8'2$ "quiiey “1adQ/julel aAuaAaId
¥0€'990°vv$ 9.5°16L'€$ 9.5'k6lL‘eS 9.5°'161°€$ 9/5°169'6L% 000°008'81$ sjosloid 1910
000°‘00%°cL$ 000°005°9% 000°'0¥8°9L$ 000'62¥°6$ 000°59€°01L$ 000°022°'pe$ sjuswanosdw sapoey
000°0S2'6¥$ 000°0se’e$ 000°0s¢€‘e$ 000°0SEVL$ 000°0S€'V1L$ 000°0SE'V1$ S90IYaA g Juswdinbg
892'70.'6T1L$ 052'928°¢Z$ 05.'928°cZ$ 05.°'928°¢T$ 9L0's€Z've$ 205°686°6Z% sesng
;ooo.mwh.u L$ 000°055°Z$ 000°055°2$ 000°052$ 000°056°c$ 000‘sov'cs sebeseg sng
0€02-920C 0€02 620¢ 8202 L20¢ 920¢
V1oL AYOD3ILVD 103rodd
aNN4d LN3JNDOT3A3IA ViN

NV1d LNIJINIAOHdINI TVLIdVD 0£0Z - 9202

g JusWydeyy







NV1d LNIWIAOULINI TVLIdVO 0€02 - 9202

9 JuBWYOEY

059'v25°T2$ 000°'08V'v$ 000°08¥'v$ 0SL'PoS'vse 000°00S‘t$ 005°0SS'v$ 2\ Ale]1
0$ 0$ 0$ 03$ 0$ 0$ s19jua) yisuel ]
0s$ 0$ 0$ 03 0$ 0$ sjoafoid ey
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ welboid Je) ey
03 03 0$ 0$ 0$ 03 "quiiay “1adOrIuleN dApuBAaId
0$ 0$ 0$ 0% 0$ 0$ sjes(oid 18pO
000°002°ZL$ 000°015°2$ 000°015°C$ 000'095°Z$ 000°095°Z$ 000'095°2$ sjuawanodwi sapnljioe
059'7.8'6$ 000°026°L$ 000°0L6°L$ 0S1'¥00°Z$ 000°0V6°L$ 005°066°1$ sapolyaA 3 Juswdinb3
0$ 0$ 0$ 0% 0% 0$ sasng
03 0$ 0$ 0s$ 0$ 0$ sebeseg sng
om_@ﬂwm_ﬁ.& 0€02 6202 8202 1202 9202 R —
VildvO V1d







18S°0V0°LLY $ vLL'68T'SLT

90.°86E'S6T $ asuejeg suipu3 pa)aafold

vLL'68Z°SLT 90/‘86£G6T T05°020'81 aouejeg duluuigag
L08°0S/'E (zee'sot'ze) G0T'8LETT Ipuadx3 1e10] JaA0 saNUBABY 1e10] Jo (AouaIdl)aQ)/ssaaxg
£VE‘626°80T T¥8°c9Y0ST LS9°T08°/9T sainypuadxgjerol
€VE°626'80T Tr8°c9v'0ST £S9°'T08°L9T fenngjendesjerof
0ST'¥00°‘C 000°0V6°T 005°066°T lexdeD aunnoy
000°095°C 0000952 000°09S‘C 8oueBUB)UIRIY 19SSY
€6T°G9E V0T T¥8'€96°'GYT LSTTS2'E9T pund juswdojarsq - kenpno jende)
Aenng jeuded
satnypuadxy
0ST‘089'CIT 606'VSE8TT T98°6LT°6LT dNUdARY 1e10]
0ST‘LLSTE TP0°L0L 6T 680°89Y°0E slajsuel) jejol
000°000°S 000°000°S 000°000°0T pund snasay woij Jaysuel
0ST'£45'9T Tro°L0L'YT 680°897°02 pung1elauas woyy 1sjsuel
siajsuel|
000°00T°T 000°00T‘T 000°001°92 anuanay I1ayaQ 1e10L
- - 000°000'S52 anusAay Isylo
000°00T°T 000‘00T‘T 000°00T°T aLU0DU| JUBLISAAU|
INuUsA3Y 1ayl10
000°€00°08 £[98°/V5°L6 €LL'TT9°T2T SINUDASY 21B)S / 1B13P3 Je10)L
000°000°ST 000°000'ST 000°000°02 siueso jeude) a)e1s
000°€00°69  $ /98/¥5‘Z8 /4119201 $ swueis jeuden jeieapaq
S$9NUBARY 21e1S /BJapad
sanuanay
ueld ue)d }a3png
820¢ Ad L2602 Ad 920¢ Ad

sisAjeuy asuejeg pund Juawanoidw]jeudesn

aiuswyoeny






SL2TVLS'TLT $ 89V'9£6°'89T

TrvesE06T  $ aouejeg Suipug pajaafoid

8917'9£6'891 [Ad AT A 928'166'8/1 aauejeg Suluuigag
£08°/£9'E (v6'stv'1T) 9T19'09¢'TT [puadx3 1830 JAA0 SBNUBAaY 110} JO (AoUualona()/ssaoxg
£6T°G9E'V0T T8'c96 ST [ST‘TST'E9T sain)ipuadxgeiol
€61°S9E'V0T T8'€96°SPT LST'TST'E9T fennQ jeuded jer0)
£6T1°G9E V0T 178'€96'SYT LST'TSZ'E9T pund Juswdojaraq - Aenng jended
feung jended
sainypuadx3
000°€00°80T L98°LVS'veT SLLTIO VLT anuaAlY 1ej0i
000°000°22 000°000°9Z 000°000°92 siajsuel] je10f
000°000°s 000°000°S 000°000°0T pung aAlasay wolj Jsjsuel)
000'000°2C 000°000°1C 00000091 pun4 jende aunnoy y1Y wouj 1ajsuel]
siajsuel]
000°000‘T 000°000°T 000°000°9Z anuaaay 19410 1B10)
- - 000°000°S52 anusAay 1vY10
000°000°‘T 000°000°T 000°000°T SLIOJU| JUallsaAu|
anuaaay J8y10
000°€00°08 £98°LV5°L6 €LLTT9TCT SaNUBAaY 8)e)s /elapadjelol
000°000°ST 000°000°ST 000°'000°02 siuelg ende) sie1g
000°€00'69  $ /98°/¥SE8 €LLTT9°C0T  § sluein jeuden jelapaq
SaNUaAsY 91.1S / 1esapad
sanuaAay
ueyd ueyd 183png
820¢C Ad £202 Ad 9202 Ad

sisAjeuy asuejeg pun4 Juawdojanaqg vy

Juswsyseny






90£ 99y $ 90£'eseY $ P9zZ'ovo’‘s
90e‘ese'y ¥92'9v0°S 5/9'820'S
000°€TT (856°269) 68G°LT
0ST°v95°92 000°005°62 00505502
000°0002¢ 000°000°TC 000°000°9T
000'000°2C 000'000'12 00000091
0ST‘V9Sy 000°005‘y 005°0S5‘Y
0ST'v00°C 000°076'T 005°066°T
0000952 000°095°C 0000952
0ST°££9°92 ro°L08Ve 680°895°0¢
0S1°//G'92 0 L0L'VT 680°891°0¢C
000°00T 000°00T $ 000001
ueld ueld 1a8png
820¢C Ad LC0T Ad 9¢0¢ Ad

aauejeg suipui pajoalold
aouejeg Suiuuidag
Ipuadx3] je10] JaA0 SanuaAdy je10] jo (Asuaidyaq)/ssaaxy
saln)ipuadxy jejor
sainypuadx3 jeudes 1330 1e101
pun4juswdojanaq vy 0119jsuel]
salnipuadx3 jeude) 18410
Aenng eudedelol
lended aunnoy
aoueUdUIR 13SSY
AenpnQjeuded
salnpuadx3y
anuanaye10]
pun4 jelauss wolj lajsuelj
aLI0DU| JUBWISBAU|
sanuanay

sisAjeuy asuejeg jeuden aunnoy viy

41uswiyoeny






RESOLUTION NO. 2025-65

APPROPRIATING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY'S EXPENDITURES OR OUTLAYS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
(“FY”) 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET

WHEREAS, there are both legal and managerial requirements to establish the
revenues to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the capital
improvement program of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) to be
paid or met from said revenues, during each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a Capital Improvement Budget for
the Authority for the Fiscal Year beginning January 1, 2026 and ending December 31, 2026
(“FY 2026") has been prepared; and

WHEREAS, said budget has been made available for public inspection for at least ten
(10) days by having at least two (2) copies thereof on file in the Authority’s Office of
Management and Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee of the Board of
Trustees discussed the proposed FY 2026 Capital Improvement Budget on May 6, 2025 and
one public hearing was held on May 6, 2025 with public notice given by publication in the
Cleveland Urban News on April 18, 2025 and April 20, 2025, publication in the Cleveland Plain
Dealer on April 16, 2025 and April 20, 2025, and (3) postings in the Authority’s Main Office
Building, at the Customer Service Center in the Tower City Rotunda, on the Authority’s social
media pages, and on the Authority’s website.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriations for the current expenditures or outlays of the RTA
Capital and RTA Development Funds during FY 2026 are as indicated below and the amounts
to be expended and encumbered in each classification during FY 2026 are hereby set aside and

appropriated:
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS

RTA Capital Fund $ 4,550,500
RTA Development Fund 163,251,157
Total Capital Appropriation $167.801,657

Section 2. That transfers of funds may be made in this capital appropriation budget
from one project to another, or from one department to another, or from one line item to another,
but not from one fund to another without Board of Trustees approval.

Section 3. That this budget may be amended from time to time in order to appropriate
additional capital grant funds that may be received in FY 2026.






Resolution No. 2025-65
Page 2

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2025-66

CONTRACT: TEMPORARY RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT FOR Date:

THE CONSTRUCTION OF SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE | 4y 15, 2025
ON AUTHORITY REAL PROPERTY (KINGSBURY RUN :

CONSOLIDATION SEWER PROJECT) Initiator: Engineering
& Project
LICENSEE:  TRIAD SUPER JOINT VENTURE Management
TERM: TERM ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2028, PLUS TWO 6-

MONTH EXTENSION TERMS

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other

1.0

2.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution authorizes the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into a Temporary Right of Entry Agreement with Triad Super
Joint Venture (“Triad”), an Ohio general partnership, as general contractor for the Northeast
Onhio Regional Sewer District (“NEORSD"). The purpose of this agreement is to permit entry
upon Authority property for the construction of access roads, sewer lines, relief sewers, and
flow regulator structures required for the Kingsbury Run Consolidation Sewer Project (“KRCS

Project”).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: NEORSD’s KRCS Project is part of Project Clean Lake, a
$3 billion, 25-year program that NEORSD began in 2011 to meet Clean Water Act standards
and address water quality issues. The KRCS Project will reduce wet weather combined sewer
overflows released into the Cuyahoga River by about 260 million gallons in a typical year. The
KRCS Project encompasses over 6,400 linear feet of new sewer lines, hundreds of feet of new
relief sewers, and new and rehabilitated flow regulator structures. The project area spans from
the Opportunity Corridor near Kinsman Road south to the Southerly Wastewater Treatment
Plant in Cuyahoga Heights. It includes the Kinsman and Broadway/Slavic Village
neighborhoods and the suburbs of Newburgh Heights and Cuyahoga Heights. Construction in
these areas is expected to continue until mid-2028.

The location of the construction is in and around the Authority’s Kingsbury Yard, as illustrated
on the attached Location Map. Kingsbury Yard is the Authority’s primary storage and staging
area for large and heavy rail components and includes a spur track connecting to the rest of
the Authority’s rail system. The Board of Trustees has previously approved two (2) permanent
and one (1) temporary easement to be granted to NEORSD for the work to be performed

under this Temporary Right of Entry Agreement.

The following terms and conditions are incorporated into the Temporary Right of Entry
Agreement:

e The term of the agreement commences upon full execution thereof and ends
December 31, 2028.

e The term may be extended for two (2) additional periods of six (6) months each with
prior written consent of the Authority.

o Construction will be in accordance with the construction plans provided by NEORSD.
Licensee may not interfere with the operations or property of the Authority.
All activities are open to inspection and control of the Deputy General Manager-
Engineering & Project Management.







Staff Summary & Comments
Temporary Right of Entry Agreement — KRCS Project

Page 2

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: The Temporary Right of Entry Agreement is consistent with the real estate
policies of the Authority. Such agreements for a term longer than three (3) years require the
approval of the Board of Trustees.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: The Authority can decline to approve the Temporary Right of Entry
Agreement. Declining to approve the Temporary Right of Entry Agreement would prevent
NEORSD’s contractor from accessing the property where the construction is to take place.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the May 6, 2025 Audit, Safety
Compliance and Real Estate Committee meeting and recommended for consideration by the
full Board of Trustees. It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS:

A. Location Maps B. Draft Temporary Right of Entry Agreement

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

-3

A o

©neral Manager, Chief Eiéfge Officer







R ———

AVIV SHIRO Asno> vapivAnD oniLne| | NOILVOIAYN ¥Od 038N 38 OL LON S1 VW SIHL alouds—AIBIXNY I0IEaIoN—Go Y881 —SOM

m m -h Q h w : 'ajqeljes BSIMIBI0 JO ‘JUSLIND ‘B1BIN0oE uSaodios]
m — u : H. u oq jou Asw 1o Aew dew siy} uo Jeedde JBL siefi] BleQ "Aluo BoUBIR)G Jo) &

— Aunon pBoyp AND pue oys Buiddew Jewisiu} U way INdino oels pajessusB Jasn & sf dew siyL

NN E A TRELS
e E ”‘

avOyd SS300V

i . L
FNNIAVIAYM A ﬂ._._(.vr._..; ’

IIAII

s|eaJed
LA R IOIDEM

peOY 8leAld ...
jeosed )
eulBlUBD PaNB|d ..

sonecionriry | FIE (ARSI
pusfon | Rk 1T L ! .ﬁb

—ANNINVANVHD
S202/61/¢ pelesi) &leq =

-
Z
L
=
I
O
<
=
<

Ar 19dng pep] - se)is JMOM AingsBury aSHO3IN







ATTACHMENT "B"

TROE Triad Super-NEORSD Kingsbury Ph Il construction 2025-05-02

TEMPORARY RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT

THIS TEMPORARY RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), made this
day of , 2025 (the "Effective Date"), by and between the GREATER
CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY ("Licensor") a political subdivision of the State
of Ohio having an office located at 1240 W. 6™ St., Cleveland, Ohio 44113 and TRIAD SUPER
JOINT VENTURE (“Licensee"), an Ohio general partnership with a business address at 9715
Clinton Rd., Brooklyn, Ohio, 44144, collectively, “the Parties.”

Licensor hereby permits Licensee to enter upon property owned or controlled by Licensor
located at:

1) 6880 Sidaway Ave., Cleveland, Cuyahoga County, Ohio and being known as
Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number (“PPN”) 125-13-001,
2) 0 Grand Ave., Cleveland, Cuyahoga County, Ohio and being known as PPN 124-22-

009

3) 0 Grand Ave., Cleveland, Cuyahoga County, Ohio and being known as PPN 124-22-
011, and

4) 0 Kinsman Rd., Cleveland, Cuyahoga County, Ohio and being known as PPN 124-
21-007

(the "Property"), and being located substantially as shown upon the print marked Exhibit "A",
attached hereto and made a part hereof.

This Right of Entry is granted upon the following terms and conditions:

1. The Right of Entry is granted for the purpose of general construction activities, tree
cutting and removal and general site preparation for the Northeast Ohio Regional
Sewer District’s Kingsbury Run Consolidation Sewer Project from the Effective Date
through December 31, 2028 (the "Term”). Licensee may extend the Term for two (2)
additional six (6) month periods with the prior written consent of Licensor. Specifically,
Licensee will be performing the activities on the Property described in the construction
plans attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference. The
following terms and conditions shall be observed by Licensee:

a. Licensee shall use all reasonable care and diligence in the work in order to
avoid accidents, damage or unnecessary delay to, or interference with, the
operation or property of the Licensor, including, without limitation, the catenary
structures and equipment installed on the Property.

b. Licensee shall conduct its work in a manner satisfactory to Licensor’s Deputy
General Manager-Engineering and Project Management or his designee and
to hold its work open to inspection by Licensor at all times.

2. Licensor shall be given at least ten (10) days advance written notice before entry upon
the Property. Notices to Licensor shall be directed to: James Reed, Property Manager,
GCRTA, 1240 W. 6" Street, Cleveland, Ohio, 44113 and whose email address is
james.reed@gcrta.org. Email notice will serve as written notice, so long as it is
accompanied by notice by U.S. Mail or hand-delivery. Activities shall be coordinated
through Don Tereba, Engineering Project Manager at GCRTA whose telephone




number is (216) 356-3255 and whose email address is dtereba@gcrta.org.

3. All reasonable care shall be exercised and such precautions taken as Licensor may
deem necessary to protect Licensor's facilities and operations and comply with
Licensor's specifications as described in Sections 014500, 015010 and 015020,
attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and made a part hereof. Licensor reserves the right
to place inspectors and supervisors for observation purposes during the operations
hereunder and the expense thereof, including the expense of any material furnished,
shall be promptly paid by Licensee upon receipt of Licensor's invoice therefor. In
addition to direct wage and material cost, such expense shall include, but shall not be
limited to, cost of supervision, traveling expenses, Ohio Public Employees’ Retirement
System ("*OPERS”) contributions, Unemployment taxes, vacation allowances, and all
other expenses incidental thereto.

4. To the fullest extent permitted by law and to the full extent of Licensee’s intentional,
reckless or negligent acts or omissions, the Licensee shall, at its sole cost and
expense, indemnify, defend, satisfy all judgments, and hold harmless Licensor and
its officials, agents, representatives, and employees from and against all claims,
actions, judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities, damages, losses and expenses,
including but not limited to attorney's fees and worker's compensation benefits, for
Licensee’s intentional, reckless or negligent acts or omissions arising out of or
resulting from the subject matter of this Agreement, or the acts or omissions of any
person or contracted entity directly or indirectly employed or contracted by Licensee.

Nothing herein shall be construed as making Licensee liable for any claims, actions,
judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities, damages or losses and expenses caused by
the sole negligence and/or misconduct of Licensor.

To the extent that any portion of this provision is found to be in violation of any
applicable law, said portion(s) of this provision are stricken but all remaining portions
of this provision shall remain in full force and effect.

5. Insurance.

a. The Licensee shall obtain and maintain for the Term of this Agreement the
following minimum insurance coverages. Such insurance shall protect the
Licensee from claims which may arise out of or result from the Licensee’s
operations under the Right of Entry and for which the Licensee may be legally
liable, whether such operations be by the Licensee or by a subcontractor or by
anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts
any of them may be liable.

Approval by the Licensor: Approval of the insurance by the Licensor shall not
relieve or decrease the liability of the Licensee hereunder and shall not affect the
obligations of Licensee pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement. It is to be
understood that the Licensor does not in any way represent that the insurance or
the limits of insurance specified herein are sufficient or adequate to protect the
Licensee’s interests or liabilities.

In the event the Licensee neglects, refuses or fails to provide the insurance
required under this Agreement, or if such insurance is cancelled for any reason,

2
Rev. 5-2024



Rev. 5-2024

the Licensor shall have the right but not the duty to procure the same at Licensee's
costs pursuant to the provisions of Section 3 of this Agreement.

Licensor reserves the right to request a copy of all policies and endorsements
prescribed herein.

At its sole expense, Licensee shall obtain and maintain:

Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance in the amount of
$6,000,000 combined single limit each occurrence for bodily injury and/or
property damage and with a $8,000,000 annual aggregate. Said policy
shall provide coverage to all leased, hired and non-owned vehicles used in
connection with the work with limits of $1,000,000.

Statutory Workers’ Compensation Coverage in compliance with all
applicable state workers’ compensation laws to cover all employees
furnishing labor under the terms of this Agreement and under the control of
the Licensee. Employers’ Liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000
per accident / $1,000,000 per employee for disease will also be included,
either under the Workers’ Compensation policy or under the Commercial
General Liability policy (Stop Gap) referenced under i. above. In Ohio, a
copy of a certificate of premium payment from the Industrial commission
and Bureau of Workers Compensation, or a copy of the Certificate of
Employer's Right to Pay Compensation Directly.

Railroad Protective Liability Insurance naming GCRTA (or the other
railroad, as applicable) as an insured and having limits of no less than
$5,000,000 per occurrence and $10,000,000 in the aggregate to cover
bodily injury liability, property damage liability and physical damage to
property.

In addition, when this insurance is required, there must also be an
endorsement to the Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy which
amends the definition of an Insured Contract by deleting the exclusion for
work within 50 ft. of a railroad.

Contractor’s Pollution Liability Insurance for bodily injury and property
damage coverage with a combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $5,000,000 per occurrence and $5,000,000 in the aggregate.
This insurance shall include coverage for, but not be limited to, sudden and
accidental discharges, gradual discharges, clean-up of pollutants and
disposal thereof, as well as mold, asbestos and/or lead in an abatement
contract. The policy must be maintained for a period of two (2) years from
completion of the work under this Agreement or the Licensee may satisfy
this requirement with the purchase of a two (2)-year extended reporting

period.

Professional Liability / Errors & Omissions Insurance in the amount of
$2,000,000 per claim and $4,000,000 in the aggregate. The definition of
wrongful acts must be applicable to the work performed hereunder.



Rev. 5-2024

Vi,

Property Insurance covering contractors’ own business personal property
and equipment to be used in performance of this Agreement, materials or
property to be purchased and/or installed, and builders risk for property in
the course of construction (if applicable). Coverage shall be written on a
"Special Form" policy that includes theft, but excludes earthquake, with
limits at least equal to the replacement cost of the property. Such policy
shall contain a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of GCRTA.

b. General Requirements:

The Licensee shall not commence work herein until it has obtained the
required insurance and has received written approval of such insurance by
the Licensor. Licensee shall furnish evidence of such insurance in the
form of a certificate (Accord or similar form).

Licensor will accept any combination of primary CGL along with Excess or
Umbrelia policies, as well as primary BAL along with Excess or Umbrella
policies, to meet the minimum coverage requirements contained herein.

The certificate shall provide the following:

e The policy shall be written on an occurrence basis. If any insurance
specified above is written on a “Claims Made” (rather than an
“occurrence” basis), then in addition to the coverage requirements
stated herein, Licensee shall:

o Ensure that the Retroactive Date is shown on the policy, and such
date shall be before the Effective Date of the Agreement or any
work beginning under this Agreement.

o Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three
(3) years following project completion, including the requirement of
adding all additional insureds; and

o If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the
effective date, Licensee shall purchase “extended reporting”
coverage for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the
work.

e Name the Licensor as an additional insured for all CGL, BAL, and, if
applicable, CPL liability coverage for claims arising out of operations in
conjunction with this Agreement.

Contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Licensor.

e Specify that the insurance is primary and non-contributory as respects
any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by Licensor.

e Contain a specific reference to this Agreement.

¢ Specify all deductibles & Self-Insured Retentions (SIR), as applicable.

¢ In the event the insurance should be changed or cancelled, such
change or cancellation shall not be effective until 15 days after the

Licensor has received written notice of such change or cancellation

from the Licensee. Such notice shall be mailed by certified mail, return

receipt requested, to the Licensor's Real Estate Manager.



s An insurance company having less than an A-X rating by The A. M.
Best Company will not be considered acceptable. All certificates are
subject to acceptance by the Licensor. The Licensor shall be entitled
to receive a full copy of the insurance policy(ies) upon request and
reserves the right to review financial statements and approve any
deductibles or SIR.

6. At the termination of this Agreement, the Property shall be restored by Licensee to
its original condition, or to a condition satisfactory to Licensor in its sole discretion.

7. No drainage conditions shall be created or allowed to exist which would be adverse
to the Property.

8. A minimum clearance of fifteen feet (15" from the centerline of the nearest rail
track shall be maintained at all times for any material, equipment or vehicles of Licensee
occupying the Property unless authorized in writing by Licensor.

9. The license and permission hereby granted is for the sole benefit of Licensee, and
Licensor is to receive no benefit therefrom nor any consideration therefor, except the covenants,
promises and agreements set forth in this Agreement.

10.  No explosives of any kind shall be used on the Property.

11.  No debris will be buried in or burned upon the Property.

12.  This Agreement (a) shall not be assigned or transferred by Licensee, (b) may be
terminated at will by Licensor or Licensee, and (c) shall terminate automatically at the close of
business on December 31, 2028 unless the term is extended as provided herein; however, that

termination shall not relieve Licensee of any obligation or liability incurred prior to such
termination.

[Signatures on following page]

Rev. 5-2024



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Temporary Right of Entry
Agreement in duplicate as of the date first hereinabove written.

THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

By:
India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

Date: , 20
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM
Janet E. Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs

TRIAD SUPER JOINT VENTURE

An Ohio general partnership
By: The Triad Engineering & Contracting Co.

An Ohio corporation,
Its: Partner

By:

Name (Printed):
Title:

Date: , 20

Rev. 5-2024



EXHIBIT “A” (1 OF 4)

SI9 am_a.__u_E_m_

Aluno— pBoyndny

NGULY YN W0 QBN B8 CL AON 81 &V BL : Cospan e
DN GRS K T D SN0 sy Km0 e "o .ﬂ_ THW
e g T Py e p———— I

PROL AN .
Ll

SR PNy ..
’_‘nﬂgﬂ

pustie

SEDTNEIT PN, S

;égssjgv’ii!:.!!r *1
o5 4 D08 O ooe

100-€4-SZ1 Ndd o

Rev. 5-2024



EXHIBIT “A” (2 OF 4)

g9 asudiaul

—— Agines=y BBy aAn ) ——

PEGH MRy
wud

WMDY PORRKS
AR IO WY o
SRS DR []

puaBey
STOT/PTT peee) W

HOLLYS YN BCd 380N 38 O LOW %1 av Sl

SRS SHABURO SO WS WESOON

0100 A0 20 K911 T Belh L0 SISO WS SRR B NUD SOLBB R Xy
PiAm oy LAt s iy U Wy VO DR i paeouel seen 8 dew ey

POLPZRZE

CLODAD

LT L T e S Y
uoioslaig

A

V081921

600-22-¥Z} Ndd

Rev. 5-2024



EXHIBIT “A” (3 OF 4)

519 aspdiaug

~— Alne - ofioyndn .

NOLYDIWYN MO GRSN 98 OL IO Si oW Sl L L T T L oY
BRI MO IO WBUT RESDN

Lowlu
0G 12U K00 40 DU Qrw Si W0 Aoy By el TG AD RuRe R 25 B

PROR Stmait .
o]

HRBOD POERS
ACMJO VAR
setRdBnp

puebey
STOEAETE Pame) weg

P I B IR WY WOy NN D D0 S8 § ) DN 4] 903000 o o0k

iz00czh2

LOOCERES

bL0-22-vZ1 Ndd

Rev. 5-2024



EXHIBIT “A” (4 OF 4)

Ig AL Etz-oﬁ MELRWREEE I LLH

o asudiaug

— Ajunomy pboyedny ——

RO YOV B0 TR S0 98 OL 10K 5 avil Skl
CEER N BRRINAD 5 TG GEIION

0 U AU 0 ARw TMU B U0 /00 B SEAR B0 AT S0URN 0 ¥
P ape Bukiay W) LY Wes NG DI PERe D e W S )

(YT g &P T TR T T~ ST
opeehuy

PRGH @ i
Wisg]
T PR PG -
AAA K Y —
SROBMN] ]

pusbey
ST PR ARG

200czr2t

-

2081 KL E

SO0ZRE L

10

£00-1Z-PZL Ndd

Rev. 5-2024



EXHIBIT “B” (1 OF 4)

iy T, ] ] - X Y I
] I | g .
e S B s e e e e B S
i) No | baped & amn
L] 3 .

y
L]
sl ¥
Rowr e ook H i, g P LI
3 1

; . )
% ™ ™ .y 4 e p— o
AL : ~ Ly e ! { ] Ay
7 a R 1 e e nwﬂ'..ﬁ.altilllhrrf'v e o /% )
: 3 e y S b, _ Sl 3
o ol | L

-~ III‘E‘AVIJQR_I ey o o,
LR SN A e a kS A
ot _J/.,\. P R X
') i o ® T v ’ . ! 4k
Dol %5, E . 1y .t ,fl.-u.ﬁt-.- _- i i
\ ' et
¥ . . S L e o

i

DU ot G N

Stomamn B 4100 0N

i
i

st om .
WA ) Y

._:g,iiﬂdﬁ ftpof kv

AN FIIME SN O0n Yl 7T

wan
s b

o T s R B S
T
-

=

s e o o 7

3. X

BEERRLLHM WX % W SASLAN

TRE ARG YUITI BTN TS VNG |

P i ]

LAPIV WIS AR T YN &

Y L4 AL T T SR
X gy

T 525 41 S00AA . NN %3 et 0k Yo ey

ALY D TOW WP LSNP IV et

YR U

LMD IO H AT AVIRS0 SHR 00 DRI
AMEi L

i
TRERAARMY R NDTE B ONRT TAWRE! LIERSRS DM S0
ot 01} NS SV EA00. The ARG HY O 1R
1 jﬂh‘- Trad 53030500 By g._gon

s IA 1 2 P WA o
PLINS e g E?..Bﬂmi

L% |
L T g

|

1

|
c.aa-:-eco

lik _._ g02-S .-8.—3&0‘ Jojenbay T T

1

Rev. 5-2024



_— A

EXHIBIT “B” (2 OF 4)

SirINIQ oW

t
"t e .
e P
e

e .

- - s -
B s | Crmmn | arvease
AR e | LR
L
e
s st | e 10t

¥l
Joyendey

g

A M MY ST
A _g.-‘-;'! R Bkl MUY
g:";—ﬁgiigd

tior oy i s SORTIR RS »
v

Aot i ohabasisd Ddviits L 1 B O Axriky

: 3 wer
[ )
¥

i

AN, DKL SOV ALV € Y BRI S 0 M LN L

IREHN S EIN0E-B I VNG DT N TV

Sltiivn D SENE DO WIS VUK i Dl T80 I i 00
!-i.—'.;ig‘;lv‘.—im L

12

Rev. 5-2024



EXHIBIT “B” (3 OF 4)

LT

H
e

-
o JJ’I"%
I R LT TS
r R ., )
. ~— B

1
15 '
lﬂ.l.'; o ¥ ff
e D I i

e

. BuppeaRy. |
o i 2
hop el L il @ | "

R e
Wb . ‘.lq “
: 4
ot R R,

K - . Fiae
2wy ; aa o AR
e i . :
Ly =% = e 8

* - -
iy Nl HOLAMIY Yraviig e
g ooy .
— g u-l:uss-.._!._ﬂmr RO Iy
™
s
Et&a—.ﬁ? I e T L]
AN |_owoneist [ i | s )
o & L L. 2R 0N, AR | W
rs-l; '\!. -E
PEsacw | Wmi | beas .
-l 1 LRSI e S VG 0 VY3 0 AN L0 kb e
amrnon  [weee | nose - ) GG MO DML TN DTN 0L VIO 20X} TRHRLOLINANGT & ..!n:i.....l-l..la..:...!:. ..l-tl.._s!., __._l_.u. L
Ll S | . LIt e —— A 0 LTSS XU 0N UL 34 4 AP D I st ]
ey eyt | m— VAP O S A gt duiviartd it Ly 8 AU 1) AT AT} Y M A AN B LTI WA LD R M0 tiIXL e ©
YT P EmuminG e WHRRIS AN ) e SRS ¥ e gﬂ-‘ﬁruﬂ v
T2 : W] AN AN WS ANl SR e TS L oyl L t
| sl | oo | i [ s | g s cmieremaconsanen e TYEEEY RS :ﬂ.?ﬁﬁ*iﬁh e l%ﬁdmmﬂg%%
r: X hramrccien v 3 W » o
AILNCING00 naevmakwirtiinia i O AL VRV AL LM ML) TMO UM
; o S « - T
" .& PR B | PN e ot e o
. . 3 1 v = b PR it Y
N
: X

. /@u. 3 oo R,

[T A

= A

13

Rev. 5-2024



EXHIBIT “B” (4 OF 4)

[105:] T - —_— P
o Sou N2 o i i 1 =1 Mg e tiering
g [R5 I e e

-z s PR :
oBpug hemepis . |

gt e n v
LU0 TR U U S |
sownaecamar 1AL
LU L s T
LU DRI VM I
SRR & AN = = e
DRI R
AWy e
Sl S I ML e Ty 0 B

%ﬁa

-ﬂ«}ﬁ_.

TN e, Wi BR TAN TR IR AILSL B
B 5 s A Sk o
AR T N s D S 2 Bna -.n-t-‘ns
AL NP FUCES MY T YRR

d_l.h-ricfll.l..l.nllli =

14

Rev. 5-2024



EXHIBIT “C”

[GCRTA Safety Procedures Sections 014500, 015010 and 015020 appear on the following pages]

In this DRAFT the GCRTA Safety Procedures are omited for brevity.

15
Rev. 5-2024






RESOLUTION NO. 2025-66

AUTHORIZING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A TEMPORARY RIGHT OF ENTRY
AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE
ON AUTHORITY PROPERTY (KINGSBURY RUN CONSOLIDATION SEWER

PROJECT)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) owns a parcel
of land located in and around its Kingsbury Yard in the City of Cleveland, identified by
Permanent Parcel Number 125-13-001 (the “Kingsbury Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority owns a parcel of land adjacent to the Kingsbury Property
located in the vicinity of East 67™ Street and Berwick Avenue in the City of Cleveland, identified

by Permanent Parcel Number 124-21-007 (“Berwick Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority owns two parcels of land located at the foot of Grand Avenue
in the City of Cleveland, identified by Permanent Parcel Numbers 124-22-009 and 124-23-011
(“Grand Avenue Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District (“NEORSD"”) has initiated the
Kingsbury Run Consolidation Sewer Project (‘KRCS Project”) to construct new sewer lines, new
relief sewers, and new and rehabilitated flow regulator structures in an area that includes the
land set forth above; and

WHEREAS, NEORSD'’s general contractor, Triad Super Joint Venture (“Triad”), an Ohio
general partnership, has requested access to the Kingsbury Property, the Berwick Property and
the Grand Avenue Property for the purpose of constructing the access roads, sewer lines, relief
sewers, and flow regulator structures for the KRCS Project; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has negotiated acceptable terms and conditions with Triad
governing access to the Authority’s real property for construction activities; and

WHEREAS, the grant of the proposed Temporary Right of Entry Agreement
(“Agreement”) is consistent with the Authority’s real estate policies.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute the Temporary Right of Entry Agreement with Triad for the term commencing upon full
execution of the Agreement and ending on December 31, 2028.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
approve up to two (2) additional six-month terms as necessary and advisable for the satisfactory
completion of construction work.






Resolution No. 2025-66
Page 2

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

DONATION OF NON-REVENUE VEHICLES TO THE CUYAHOGA
COMMUNITY COLLEGE GENERAL AUTOMOTIVE PROGRAM

2025-67

Date:
May 15, 2025

Initiator: Fleet
Management
Department

Approval

ACTION REQUEST:

Review/Comment

Information Only

Other

1.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

(“Authority”) to transfer title of five vehicles to Cuyahoga Community College (“Tri-C”) for
training purposes.

2.0

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Vehicle numbers 24601, 33401, 25401, 28408, and 28407

(further described below) are not operational and are currently occupying space on the
Authority’s property. Each of the five vehicles has a scrap value of approximately $1,200.00

for a total donation value of $6,000.00.

Serial
Vehicle
Number

Description

Mamufacture

Model

Licenss
Plats

Original Cost

Milags

Vin Number

24601

Chevrolet Tahoe 4WD LS (Mocha)

Chewrolet

Tashos

T47Z5)

29,954.50

236,713

1GNSIGEI4ER126363

25401

1930 Police Pursuit Utility {Gray)

Ford

|Interceptor TR

25618

183,608

1FM3KBARBFGAD4366

26407

366 Police Pursuit Utility {Gray)

Ford

]lnterceptor m»

966

27506

125,887

1FMSKBAR21GC18814

28408

1966 Police Pursuit Uhility [Gray)

Ford

lInterceptor ”

%64

27,606

137,633

1FMIKBAR4IGCIB815

33401

ER-03 Ford E-150 Econoline Vari (White}]

Ford

lE—i.fiG Van

134YNS

17,133.68

236,773

1FTNE1EWSDDASBE00

3.0

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 306.43(L)(6),

competitive procedures are not required to transfer material or equipment to a nonprofit entity
having the general welfare or education of the public as one of its principal objects.
Furthermore, Ohio Revised Code Section 306.43(L)(4) states that a regional transit authority
may dispose of property, without competitive procedures, to a department of the federal or
state government, a political subdivision of the state, or to any other governmental entity. This
transaction is exempt from competitive procedures under both subsections (L)(4) and (L)(6) of
Ohio Revised Code Section 306.43, as Tri-C is both a political subdivision of the State of Ohio
and an institution of higher education of the public.

4.0
5.0

DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: This disposal is consistent with the Authority’s Disposition of Property policy

in Chapter 410 of the Codified Rules & Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit

Authority.
6.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The five vehicles will be donated to Tri-C. No money will be generated

from this action, nor will there be an expenditure of Authority funds. Tri-C will pay all costs
incurred with this transaction.

7.0

an alternative method such as sealed bids or through auction.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. The Authority will then have to dispose of the vehicles by







Staff Summary & Comments
Donation of Non-Revenue Vehicles to Tri-C’s General Automotive Program

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees adopt the resolution
authorizing the donation of non-revenue vehicle numbers 24601, 33401, 25401, 28408, and

28407 to Tri-C.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

- . -
/C-/‘Lf,/éi_..d T (:xﬂ___-;:? o

Géﬁeral Manager, Chief Executive Officer

5\ ;
—






RESOLUTION NO. 2025-67

AUTHORIZING THE DONATION OF NON-REVENUE VEHICLE NUMBERS
24601, 33401, 25401, 28408, AND 28407 TO THE CUYAHOGA COMMUNITY
COLLEGE GENERAL AUTOMOTIVE PROGRAM

WHEREAS, pursuant to R.C. 306.43(L)(4), a regional transit authority may dispose of
property, without competitive procedures to a department of the federal or state government, a
political subdivision of the state, or to any other governmental entity; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to R.C. 306.43(L)(6), a regional transit authority may dispose of
property by gift to a non-profit entity having the general welfare or education of the public as one

of its principal objectives; and

WHEREAS, the Cuyahoga Community College (“Tri-C”) is a political subdivision of the
state and a non-profit entity that has the education of the citizens of Cleveland and Cuyahoga

County as one of its principal objectives; and

WHEREAS, non-revenue vehicle numbers 24601, 33401, 25401, 28408, and 28407 are
no longer operable, have a scrap value of approximately $1,200.00 each, for a total donation
value of $6,000.00, and have been scheduled to be disposed of by the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the transfer of vehicle
numbers 24601, 33401, 25401, 28408, and 28407 by donation to Tri-C to be used for training in
its General Automotive Program to be in the best interest of the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
transfer title and ownership of non-revenue vehicle numbers 24601, 33401, 25401, 28408, and
28407 by donation to Tri-C on such terms and conditions as she deems appropriate to protect the
interest of the Authority.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, or her designee, is hereby
authorized to execute all documents necessary for such transfer by donation of vehicle numbers

24601, 33401, 25401, 28408, and 28407.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 20, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

DATE: May 14, 2025

TO: Distribution A
L

FROM: Carolyn Young, Director &f ants Management & Treasury

RE: Treasury Reports for April 2025

Please find attached the following monthly treasury reports:

Report on Investiment Eamings

Inventory of Treasury Investments and Accrued Interest
Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund
Composition of Investment Portfolio

Summary of Investment Performance

Banking and Financial Relationships

OO p N

The month of April began with cash and investment balance of $363.4 million. Sales tax
revenue in the amount of $21.4 million was received in April. The month closed with a cash and
investment balance of $365.1 million. The Authority’s average investment balance for the month
was $368.0 million, compared to $385.9 million in April 2024.

The Authority’s average yield on investments was 4.05% during the month of April.

The average yiekl on the portfolio year to date is 4.06%, which is 0.13 basis points below the
performance standard yield of 4.20% and 0.33 basis points below the money market average
yield of 4.39%. The following table summarizes key economic indicators reported in March 2025
{April 2025:

Previous Report

Economic Indicator Period Actual/Revised Current Report Actual
Consumer Price March 24 2 4 All items increased
Index
Consumer April 86.0 7.9-point decline in
Confidence Consumers’ confidence
Leading Economic March 100.5 0.7% decline in LEI
Indicators *
Unemployment Rate  April 42 The unemployment rate

was unchanged at 4.2%

compared to March

*Apsil 2025 CPI, LEI information has not been reported

DISTRIBUTION: Birdsong-Terry, Gautam, Togher, Sutula, Young, Lyons, So, Hodges



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)
AS OF APRIL 30, 2025

BOND RETIREMENT FUND
HUNTINGTON MONEY MARKET
TOTAL APRIL
2025 YEAR TO DATE
2024 YEAR TO DATE

GENERAL FUND
HUNTINGTON-SALES TAX ACCOUNT
STARCHIO
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT
MERCHANT ACCOUNT-KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
FHLB
TOTAL APRIL
2025 YEAR TO DATE
2024 YEAR TO DATE

INSURANCE FUND
STAROHIO
TOTAL APRIL
2025 YEAR TO DATE
2024 YEAR TO DATE

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
STAROHIO

TOTAL APRIL
2025 YEAR TO DATE
2024 YEAR TO DATE

LOCAL MATCH FUND
STAROHIO-LOCAL MATCH
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT

TOTAL APRIL
2025 YEAR TO DATE
2024 YEAR TO DATE

PENSION FUND
STAROCHIO
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
TOTAL APRIL
2025 YEAR TO DATE
2024 YEAR TO DATE

EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY ACCOUNT
KEY BANK MONEY MARKET
TOTAL APRIL
2025 YEAR TO DATE
2024 YEAR TO DATE

RTA CAPITAL FUND
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT
TOTAL APRIL
2025 YEAR TO DATE
2024 YEAR TO DATE

Page 1 0f 2

11,471.36

11,471.36

o W||w

29,538.48
38,455.75

898.14
44,062.41
6,819.38
15,345.99
431.98
45,000.00
112,557.90

w BN

56321167
380,202.23

25,998.54

25,998.54

@ NN

103,810.09
136,293.10

203.92
284.01

487.93

" Al @

1,845.42
1,737.04

208,236.57
1,217.83
249,935.32

459,389.72

@

2,167,633.94
2,092,585.66

5,433.55
293
5,436.48

AW »

21,703.59
25424.37

456.69

456.69

LXK L

1,788.12
1.820.48

12,325.94
7,850.83

20,316.77

@ Wwe o

76,798.85
107,611.02



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)
AS OF APRIL 30, 2025

RESERVE FUND
STAROHIO $ 174,625.66
FHLB €5,625.00
PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT 209,864.98
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 6.954.33
TOTAL APRIL $ 457,069.97
2025 YEAR TO DATE $ 1.617,644.35
2024 YEAR TO DATE $ 2,125,868.27
TOTAL ALL FUNDS
APRIL 2025 $ 1,093,185.36
2025 YEAR TO DATE $ 4,584,074.51
2024 YEAR TO DATE $ 4,910,167.92
2025 YEAR
APRIL TO DATE
INTEREST RECEIVED (CASH BASIS) 3 1,083,185.36 $ 4,584,074.51
ACCRUED INTEREST:
BEGINNING: (550,450.286) {458,951.39)
ENDING 640,614.33 ©640,614.33
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME EARNED $ 1,183,348.73 $ 4,765,737.45
AVERAGE INVESTMENT BALANCE (COST BASIS): s 363,641,320 3 368,045,945
AVERAGE YIELD ON INVESTMENTS: 4.05% 4.06%

Page2of 2



AS OF APRIL 30, 2028

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
INVENTORY OF TREASURY INVESTMENTE

Page tof 2

AVERAGE
PURCHASE  MATURITY TERM TOTAL ACCRUED DAYS TO AVERAGE
FUND DATE DATE INSTRUMENT INSTITUTION DAYS PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY YIELD
BOND RETIREMENT FUND
4/30/2026 §/1/2026 MONEY MARKET HUNTINGTON BANK i 8 4,660,514 - 1 3.80%
* TOTAL BOND RETIREMENT FUND $ 4,860,814 $ . 3.08%
GENERAL FUND
413012025 §/1/20256 MERCHANT ACCT-KEY MMKT KEY BANK 108 807,118 $ - 1 1.56%
4/30/2026 6/1/2025 STAR OHIO STATE OF QHIO 1 11,419,284 1 4.47%
4/30/2026 5/1/2025 EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY FUND KEY BANK 1 381,713 - 1 1.56%
4/30/2026 5/1/2025 PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT PNC BANK 1 6,702,806 - 1 4.27%
4/30/2025 5/1/2028 SALES TAX ACCOUNT HUNTINGTON BANK 1 28,524 - 1 3.00%
4/30/2025 5/1/2028 KEY ECR KEY BANK 1 5,930,959 - 1 1.56%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ 25,244,491 § . 360%
INSURANCE FUND
4/30/2028 §/1/2026 STAR OHIO STATE OF OHIO 1 8 6,998,181 $ . 1 4.47%
4/30/20286 8/1/2028 KBY ECR KEY BANK 1 18,670 . 1 0.00%
TOTAL INBURANCE FUND $ 7,017,851 3 - 446%
LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
4/30/2026 5/1/2028 KEY ECR KEY BANK-SWEEP AR 227,048 5 - 1 1.86%
4130/2026 §/1/2026 STAR QHIO STATE OF QHIO 1 8 77.803 $ - 1 4.47%
TOTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND 3 308,451 2.30%
LOCAL MATCH FUND
4/30/2028 §/1/2025  LOCAL MATCH-STAR OHIO STATE OF OHIO 1§ 66,158,484 $ = 1 4.47%
8i24/2022 §12/2025 FHLMC STIFEL NICOLAUS 1084 9,087,110 142,800 12 3.08%
8/27/2022 8/27/2026 FHLB STIFEL NICOLAUS 1088 15,000,000 171,176 88 3.34%
8/30/2022 8/28/2026 FHLB STIFEL NICOLAUS 1084 16,000,000 103,802 120 4.01%
4/30/2028 §/1/2025 PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT PNC BANK 1 £3,583,811 “ 1 4,27%
4/30/2026 §/1/2028 LOCAL MATCH-KEY ECR KEY BANK-SWEEP 1 1,122,698 - 1 1.86%
4/30/2026 §/1/20256 GRANT-ECR KEY BANK 1 1,017,418 - 1 0.00%
4/30/2025 5/1/2026 CATCH BASIN-KEY ECR KEY BANK 1 108,518 - 1 1.86%
TOTAL LOCAL MATCH FUND § 161,086,031 ] 417,587 4.11%



%S0'? v19'008

PATA P09%EL_____ §

ward b -

%06t ! -

%eE'Y ' -

%928 62 950°)L

%8s 19 008'88

%99°2 zev'es $

L1754 8 2ov'ee

%aTY ) -

%88't t - $

%lbp ' -

(e i - s

aEA ALENLYIN FTECEI]]
FOVMEAY  OL SAVQ a2NYOoV

FOVEIAY

2 joz abed

tolelo9et $ SANN4 1V IVLOL ANVMO
SsosEawE _§ NN FAYIEAY “IVL0L
062 ¥20 LY b OIHO 20 21v1S OIHO ¥vLS 52021118 920Z/06/Y
aoc'zor's ! MNVE A3 LEEN g2021Mie 8z0z/08IY
anv'LiL'le i %NvE ONd ANNODOY AGOLSNO ONd  §20Z/M8 §202/08/Y
000'000's 8801  SNVIODIN 13dILS 40 woy §1H AT zZoZ/eS
000'000's 9801  SNVIODIN 13:1LS g7Hd §202/0¢/0 2202/08/0
GNNd BANASEY
olleva'el § ONMd YLIdYD V1N TVL0L
786'Z0v8 8801  SNVIOOIN 1adlLS g7Hd 9202/42/0 Te02IL2l0
822's8's } YNVE ONd ANNODOY AGOLSNO ONd  S202/1/8 520Z/0LlY
00e'88b'e $ 1 MNVE ASH ¥O3 AT 5202/1/3 9202/081%
aNnd WLV ViY
ZHaVEY') ) annd NOISNad TYLOL
oaLzer | ! OIHO 40 31vis OIHO Y¥vis 9202/4/8 szoz/oery
\ee'l $ L MNVE A3M ¥03 A §202/1/8 g20Z/0SIY
GNNd NOISNEd
TWdiONIdd  €Avd NOILNLILENI LINBWNYELEN] HivVa 8lva annd
wiok wuaL ALINLYIN  38VHOMNNG
9202 '0¢ NdY 40 SV

ALROHLAY LISNVYL TYNOIDZY ONVIIATTO HALYIND

SANSIWLSIANI AUNSYIUL 40 AMOLNIANI



8028848
¥15'600'v8
TSIy pusd
008'04%'S ¢ | os2'z18'8 $ | 000'gse's $ 082'ls¢ $ | 08L'4S8 $| - $ 09.'.99 $  000'01£'22 $
agL'ess’L 9.8'986'L 000°00L'L YLD 918081 B 926961 000'946'2
052'288') Gze'sey'l 000'088'L 920'801 8Z9'80t . $29'901 000'9¥E'Y
008'28p'y 0sL'esz'y 000'620'y 092'802 092'802 - 094'002 000'0ge'8
000'428'L ¢ | 00s'eal't $ | ooo'opL's $ oog'st ¢ | oosg'sy $ - $ oog'cy $ 000'0pL'L
$202 gzo2iuet gzozILTY 9zOZ/LITL 920Z/ii2 Q20TILS 92021119 peozieL
uswanbey nusuennbay reiquied 1eigefed Ausuisanbay jo1aqeied Jeiqeied Bujpusising
a8d 10104, SJjAlg JqeQ ledjoupd sa0u| 89]M8S YaQ judjoupd w0y ledioupd (s301,

SNLVLS NV 2 INGAHOS 3DIAYES 1830

§202 '0¢ idV 40 8Y

ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIOAY ONVTZARTD ¥aLVEaHo

§ §20¢'98Q

paainbey episy 16§ Ajwuon

(920z 103 apisy 165) eousjeg JueLND

spuog ([mjoL
"ADY XBL 89(95-8L0Z 891105
"ABY Xe) 89(8S-010T 88165
"ABY XU $6{8S-9107 3108
"ABY X8L 80/8S-Y{|0Z 86108

spuog



pioiA ABQ £ pund Aeuoyy Ainseas] SN 8{Bnbo PBlA 10BN #

‘sjiig Ainseaa Yjuow g Jo} Bp|SIA Jusjeanbe uodnos ebeiens BulAOW #

%428'0° %£9'0- %0¢'0r %E1°0* XSANI (MZANN) YBAO0 §Q7T3IA FOVETAY VIN
%18y %98'% %EPP  LGVELE'9L  § 960'288'08¢ $ %66’y %02'? %a0'y  LEL'GOL'P ¢  shs'opo'soes H1va OL ¥V3A
%OL'p %el'y %60y  059'58M'L 882'998'0L¢ y3awaoaa
%G0'y %Ir'y wbE'e  sov'ost'l 198" 12E'0LE HIANIAON
%bpy %eV'Yy %ee'y  £66'080'L 251'660'pL8 L0190
%26y %eE'y usay  vRL'LY 862'9568'04E yZaWaLd3s
%88y %688y %oS'v  109'908't 128'692'28¢ Lsneny
%98'p %PL'g %Sk  109'968') 198'092'58¢ Ane
%80y %ee'9 wubb'y  28'21L') £20'1PE'0LE aNne
%IT'G %2y's uep'>  G68'9ZY'L palL'arL'08e AVW
%LT'G %2h's %Gy  180'968') vbo'9ge'26E %iEy %92y %e0'y  BE'SHI'L $ 02¢c'Iv0'ERE  § TNeidyv
%21'G %eE's %O0S'P  6op'ebe') £16'008'e0¢ %BE'D %Ly %e0'>  br8'sal'} $ ozz'zes'soe & HONVIN
%gl'g %IE'S %EP'Y  LET'GLZ'L Je'egz'ose %K'y %0L'p %00y  6LL'1ET'} § es0'v2e'8E ¢ ANvNYE3d

2's %95'S 96b'sEL'L  §  8p0'S0a'osE § %or'y %9L'p %60'y  902'GeL's  § BLI'09B'0LL  § A¥VNNYP
#ASIA # QT3 [RETN aaNuva FONVIVE #QTEIA FYRED agiA qaNuvE HONVIVE HINOW

SANNAINON __OMVANVLS SOVMIAY ___LSIWIINI ____ JOVHIAY ) A2 E|

2027 :1{114

8202 '0€ "IV HONO¥HL 3LVA OL ¥VIA
SONVIROY3d LNIJIWLSIANI 40 AMVANNS
ALIMOHLAY LISNVYL TYNOIDZY ONVYI3ATTO Y3 LYEUD



%90'p %00°00L 962'c0L'99c  §  _col'Blo'see § OJ10JOd JUSUISEAY| [B10L
8% %8Y'e %EB'GH 00006186 166'v01'8S $8)}}iN%8S JUBWILIBAOD 'S’
I %895°} %pi9 001'86€'2C 001'66€'22 Junoooy ejey ipesD sbujuses
b %Lb'y %L6'ES 09r'g8L's2L 00v'S8L'EZ! o0 JEIs
L %95'} %LE0 9v9'05€'} ov9'0s€'t Junoooy deemg usg Aoy
) %LEY %80'EY Log'sie'est $  Leg'esc'esl  § Junoooy 1exIBIN Aeuow
WJustunasug
ALENLYIN TN 1oL INNOWY VIONId
OVEIAY JOVHIAVY 40 LN30¥3d 39v4
9202 ‘0¢ INdV SV

0IM041¥0d LNIWLSIANI 40 NOILISOdINOD



"UOELIOM) |2UOR|PPE JO)
08-0Z0Z 'ON UO[IN|O5BY SBBISNIL JO PIEOF PUE HZO SINPEIOIJ BARCASIUIWRY ‘(AJ1j0d (9ARIL) AIOYINY JjsuR)) [UOISaY PUB|SARID JOIREJS 8L JO Suope|nEBY pue s8|MY PBIPOD BUY JO 959 JardeyD o) Jojal esedld

T102 ‘L7 Yie perep ABuUly Jueig 'Y 03 UOIUIdO AIOSIABY JBISURISSIWWIO] SIIUI3 OIYO
80-TY0Z JoquInN uouId UBISSIWWIOD SAIF OO
020z '9 AR paaep (siiely 867 - Woa) piojusg Bupy tiays 03 UojuldO AIOSIAPY JJE3S LOISSILLG)) SaIWIE OIY0
T4 Z0-4NIFED0Z JSqUINN LUK (BUIOJU| UO|SSIUWIWE) S2|Yia OO
(2) pue (@)E0'ZOT Su0|ID8S 3POD PESIAGY OJUO
1M Bouej|dwos Uj by 03 Sjenpiapu) eigesjidde o) pepiacld Bulaq s} UOREWIOLU] S|YL

30N
afipay jend Jueg spUBH QNG
Jesis|Bey puog uojjaiy YJOA MBN jo yueq
SIUSWISBAUI-0IYO HV.LS
Jayumispun
UNGIY X8 SBIES PUE JUBWBIBY PUDH yueg uoBujIunH
UNOIY MOJIS] PAUL Yyt
PJe3 3P3LD pue JUNBIJY {BIPoISND jued DNd
saojAses Bupjueq ujeiy sjueg Aay

diysuope|ea jo 24meN uopN3ISY] jRIPUBU|Y/HUES

§202 ‘08 1dv josv
sdjysuopejoy jeppueutd pue Supjueq
>u_..o_._u=< Jsueay _uzn_mﬂz PURIBABD 1DIR8ID






